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The Group’s ‘Building Homes with Heart’ Caring Initiative helps the 
needy

Group Vice Chairman and Managing Director Thomas Kwok (left) 
attends a farewell party for retired employees to show the Group’s 
appreciation for long-service staff 

SHKP-Kwoks’ Foundation scholarships help outstanding students at 
mainland universities

Efforts to promote reading include the SHKP Book Club’s 

book review competitions, seminars and a free literary 

magazine.  The Book Club held a third Young Writers’ 

Debut Competition this year and the winning books came 

out at the Hong Kong Book Fair.  The Group also took 

underprivileged children to the Book Fair for the fourth 

year in a row and gave them funds to buy books.  The 

Group hosted the seventeenth in its Nobel Lecture series 

in collaboration with the Chinese University of Hong Kong 

this year, with a Nobel prize winner speaking in Hong 

Kong.  The Group supports education in Hong Kong and on 

the mainland, and the SHKP-Kwoks’ Foundation continues 

providing scholarships at a number of mainland and Hong 

Kong universities that enable deserving individuals continue 

their studies.

The SHKP Club runs Loving Home campaigns every year 

to encourage healthy, harmonious families.  The campaign 

theme this year was Cherish Your Family, and it encouraged 

family love online and through seminars, workshops and 

story competitions.  The Ma Wan Park Noah’s Ark continued 

to promote positive values through various facilities and 

special events.

Group staf f  are encouraged to get involved in the 

community to show their concern and contribute to society.  

The SHKP Volunteer Team has over 1,800 members and 

works with social agencies to help groups including the 

aged, teenagers and the disadvantaged.  The Group also 

formed a Sunshine Team for children and young people to 

instill the spirit of serving the community in the younger 

generation.

The Group suppor ts many char i t ies and non-prof i t 

organizations.  It was a top Community Chest donor in 

the companies, organizations and individuals category 

once again and won a top fundraising award for the 

Chest’s marathon for the 16th consecutive year.  There 

were 61 Group companies or developments named Caring 

Companies in the year, some for the ninth consecutive year.
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Corporate Social Responsibility 

Property management staff seminarCorporate culture workshop for Guangzhou staff

The Group believes that staff are its most valuable asset, and 

it provides a wide range of training programmes to foster 

their development.  The Group provided courses during the 

year that attracted over 30,000 attendees.

Management Trainee and Engineering Trainee programmes 

recruit high-caliber graduates from leading local, mainland 

and overseas universities.  Managerial staff attend a wide 

range of seminars on different topics conducted by leading 

experts, and some senior managers can attend overseas 

programmes to develop global perspectives. Newly 

promoted managers receive training to equip them with the 

skills they need to perform effectively.

Staff Development and Personal Growth

Mainland offices offer training for staff at different levels, 

including corporate orientation courses that help local staff 

assimilate the Group’s corporate culture. Some mainland 

staff can take structured on-the-job training in Hong Kong to 

become acclimatized with the Group’s business style.  There 

are programmes for Hong Kong staff about the mainland’s 

socio-economic development, legal system, and business 

practices.  Staff who are to be seconded to mainland offices 

can receive relevant training and preparation, including 

Putonghua lessons and cultural awareness training.

The Group’s Service Excellence programme for property 

management this year included five large-scale seminars for 

site managers, supervisors and frontline staff to encourage 

them to work as a team to provide high-quality, consistent 

service.  Leasing and sales staff undergo training to enhance 

their professionalism, and they have regular opportunities to 

exchange information and experience.

Professionals from different disciplines present staff seminars to 
expand knowledge and horizons

Inter-departmental team building workshop at Ma Wan
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Staff fitness classes with professional instructors

The Group encourages staff to participate in activities with their families and lead a balanced life

The Group emphasizes work safety and arranges seminars 

and workshops on construction sites and in offices.  It is also 

concerned about the environment and holds seminars on 

environmental protection to provide staff with necessary 

skills and knowledge to support the Group’s green initiatives.

New staff go through a comprehensive orientation about 

the company and department which they will be working. 

The Group presents seminars and workshops on stress 

management and mental health, and holds interest classes 

and recreation activities, some of which are open to 

employees’ families.

All staff are eligible for sponsorship to attend external 

training in job-related courses ranging from short seminars 

to degree programmes. A new sponsorship scheme for 

master’s degree programmes was set up this year for high 

potential-staff. Self-learning programmes include videos, 

books and magazines and multi-media learning materials 

are available in the Group’s Training Library and on the 

e-learning platform on the company intranet.  

Staff have access to the e-learning platform on the intranet at any 
time 
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Financial Review

Review of Results

Profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders for the year ended 30 June 2011 was HK$48,097 million, an increase of HK$18,058 

million or 60.1% compared to HK$30,039 million for the last year. The reported profit has included an increase in fair value of 

investment properties net of related deferred taxation and non-controlling interests of HK$26,996 million (2010: HK$17,005 million).

Underlying profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders for the year ended 30 June 2011, excluding the net effect of changes in 

the valuation of investment properties, increased by HK$7,596 million or 54.7% to HK$21,479 million compared to HK$13,883 million 

for the last year. Profit from property sales increased by HK$10,031 million to HK$16,647 million, owing to substantial increase in sales 

recognized for residential projects including Aria, The Latitude, Larvotto, Valais and The Orchard Residences in Singapore. Net rental 

income grew 14.4% to HK$9,511 million, driven by continuous positive rental reversions as well as contribution from new investment 

properties including ICC Office in Hong Kong and Shanghai IFC Mall in Mainland China. Telecommunication segment contributed an 

operating profit of HK$967 million, a robust increase of HK$640 million or 2 times over the last year, on the back of strong growth in 

number of customers. Hotel profit increased by 48.3% to HK$553 million, boosted by growth in both occupancy and room rates amid 

improvement in economic conditions.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

(a) Net debt and gearing

As at 30 June 2011, the Company’s shareholders’ funds increased by HK$43,744 million to HK$306,965 million, equivalent to an 

increase of 16.6% to HK$119.4 per share (30 June 2010: HK$102.4 per share).

The Group’s financial position remains strong with a low debt leverage and strong interest cover. Gearing ratio as at 30 June 

2011, calculated on the basis of net debt to Company’s shareholders’ funds, was 17.1% compared to 14.1% at 30 June 2010. 

Interest cover, measured by the ratio of operating profit to total net interest expenses including those capitalized, was 16.9 

times compared to 15.9 times for the previous year.

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s gross borrowings totalled HK$60,435 million. Net debt, after deducting cash and bank deposits 

of HK$7,898 million, amounted to HK$52,537 million, an increase of HK$15,353 million since 30 June 2010. The increase 

principally reflects the Group’s continued acquisitions and investment in property projects in Hong Kong and Mainland China. 

The maturity profile of the Group’s gross borrowings is set out as follows:

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

HK$ Million HK$ Million

Repayable:

Within one year 9,682 11,262

After one year but within two years 23,334 8,022

After two years but within five years 17,916 19,402

After five years 9,503 6,702

Total borrowings 60,435 45,388

Cash and bank deposits 7,898 8,204

Net debt 52,537 37,184

The Group has also procured substantial committed and undrawn banking facilities, most of which are arranged on a medium 

to long term basis, which helps minimize refinancing risk and provides the Group with strong financing flexibility.

With ample committed banking facilities in place, continuous cash inflow from property sales and a solid base of recurrent 

income, the Group has adequate financial resources for its funding requirements.
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(b) Treasury policies

The entire Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally managed and controlled at the corporate level. As at 30 June 

2011, about 78% of the Group’s borrowings were raised through its wholly-owned finance subsidiaries and the remaining 22% 

through operating subsidiaries.

The Group’s foreign exchange exposure was minimal given its large asset base and operational cash flow primarily 

denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at 30 June 2011, about 74% of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in Hong 

Kong dollars, 17% in Renminbi and 9% in US dollars. The foreign currency borrowings were mainly for financing property 

projects outside Hong Kong.

The Group’s borrowings are principally arranged on a floating rate basis. For some of the fixed rate notes issued by the Group, 

interest rate swaps have been used to convert the rates to floating rate basis. As at 30 June 2011, about 81% of the Group’s 

borrowings were on floating rate basis including those borrowings that were converted from fixed rate basis to floating rate 

basis and 19% were on fixed rate basis. The use of derivative instruments is strictly controlled and solely for management of 

the Group’s underlying financial exposures for its core business operations. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative 

and structured product transactions for speculative purposes.

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had outstanding fair value hedges in respect of fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps in the 

aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,644 million, cash flow hedge in respect of a floating-to-fixed interest rate swap in the 

carrying amount of HK$100 million and currency swaps (to hedge principal repayment of USD borrowings) in the aggregate 

carrying amount of HK$452 million.

As at 30 June 2011, about 59% of the Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, 23% in United 

States dollars, 16% in Renminbi and 2% in other currencies.

Charges of Assets

As at 30 June 2011, certain bank deposits of the Group’s subsidiary, SmarTone, in the aggregate amount of HK$411 million, were 

pledged for securing performance bonds related to telecommunications licences and some other guarantees issued by the banks. 

Additionally, certain assets of the Group’s subsidiaries with an aggregate carrying value of HK$20,274 million have been charged, 

majority of which were for securing their bank borrowings on the mainland. Except for the above charges, all the Group’s assets are 

free from any encumbrances.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees for bank borrowings of joint venture companies and 

other guarantees in the aggregate amount of HK$1,650 million (30 June 2010: HK$3,041 million).
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report for the year ended 30 June 2011:

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company continues to be holding investments in various subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Group continue to be the development of and investment in properties for sale and rent, hotel 

operation, telecommunications, transportation, infrastructure and logistics. Other ancillary and supporting businesses, which are 

described under principal subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates on pages 190 to 198, are integrated with the main 

business of the Group. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by reportable and operating segments in business 

operation and geographical area is set out in note 2 to the financial statements.

Group Profits

Profit after taxation, including shares of results from jointly controlled entities and associates, amounted to HK$48,788 million (2010: 

HK$30,641 million (restated)). After taking non-controlling interests into account, profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders 

was HK$48,097 million (2010: HK$30,039 million (restated)).

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK$0.95 per share (2010: HK$0.85 per share) was paid on 23 March 2011. The Board of Directors of the 

Company (the “Board”) recommend a final dividend of HK$2.40 per share (2010: HK$1.85 per share), making a total dividend of HK$3.35 

per share for the full year ended 30 June 2011 (2010: HK$2.70 per share).

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “2011 Annual General 

Meeting”), will be payable in cash, with an option to receive new and fully paid shares in lieu of cash under the scrip dividend scheme 

(the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”). The new shares will, on issue, not be entitled to the proposed final dividend, but will rank pari passu in 

all other respects with the existing shares. A circular containing details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme and the relevant election form 

are expected to be sent to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on or about Thursday, 22 December 2011.

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the passing of the resolution relating to the payment of final dividend at the 2011 

Annual General Meeting and the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting the 

listing of and permission to deal in the new shares to be issued under the Scrip Dividend Scheme.

Final dividend will be distributed, and the share certificates issued under the Scrip Dividend Scheme will be sent on or about Thursday, 

19 January 2012 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 16 December 2011.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s ordinary shares during the 

year ended 30 June 2011.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are shown in note 28 to the financial statements.
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Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are shown in note 30 to the financial 

statements and on page 143 respectively.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are shown in notes 10 and 11 to the financial statements.

Group Financial Summary

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five years are summarized on page 6.

Properties

Particulars of major investment properties held by the Group are set out on pages 40 and 41.

Directors

The list of Directors is set out on page 2 of this report and their particulars are set out on pages 118 to 128. All Directors held office for 

the whole year.

In accordance with Article 104(A) of the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”), Madam Kwong Siu-hing, 

Dr. Li Ka-cheung, Eric, Mr. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter, Sir Po-shing Woo, Mr. Lo Chiu-chun, Clement and Mr. Wong Chik-wing, Mike 

will retire from office by rotation at the 2011 Annual General Meeting. Madam Kwong Siu-hing and Mr. Lo Chiu-chun, Clement have 

informed the Company that they will not seek re-election at the 2011 Annual General Meeting. The remaining retiring Directors, being 

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2011 Annual General Meeting. None of the Directors proposed for re-election 

has a service agreement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment of 

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the 

independence guidelines under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and that the 

Company considered all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

As at 30 June 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying 

shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and 

Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of 

the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which 

were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to 

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules 

as adopted by the Company, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

1. Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares held
 

Name of Director

Personal 

interests 

(held as 

beneficial 

owner)

Family 

interests 

(interests of 

spouse or 

child 

under 18)

Corporate 

interests 

(interests of 

controlled 

corporation)

Other 

interests Total

Number of 

underlying 

shares held 

under equity 

derivatives1 Total

% of shares 

in issue as at 

30.06.2011

Kwong Siu-hing 21,151 – – 1,083,879,328 1,083,900,4792 – 1,083,900,479 42.17

Lee Shau-kee 486,340 – 343,0005 – 829,340 – 829,340 0.03

Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas 1,976,281 304,065 – 393,460,2972 & 3 395,740,643 100,000 

(personal interests)

48,000 

(family interests)

395,888,643 15.40

Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond 75,000 – – 396,603,9782 & 4 396,678,978 100,000 396,778,978 15.44

Wong Yue-chim, Richard – 1,000 – – 1,000 – 1,000 0.00

Li Ka-cheung, Eric – 4,028 – – 4,028 – 4,028 0.00

Fung Kwok-lun, William 120,000 9,500 – – 129,500 – 129,500 0.01

Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter6 75,000 – – 1,087,663,522 1,087,738,522 – 1,087,738,522 42.32

Woo Po-shing 1,302,239 – – – 1,302,239 – 1,302,239 0.05

Lo Chiu-chun, Clement 90,000 – – – 90,000 – 90,000 0.00

Wong Yick-kam, Michael 167,099 – – – 167,099 – 167,099 0.01

Chan Kai-ming 41,186 – – – 41,186 100,000 141,186 0.01

Chan Kui-yuen, Thomas – 66,000 126,5007 – 192,500 100,000 292,500 0.01

Kwong Chun 702,722 339,358 – – 1,042,080 100,000 1,142,080 0.04

Wong Chik-wing, Mike 195,999 – – – 195,999 100,000 295,999 0.01

Woo Ka-biu, Jackson 

 (Alternate Director to 

 Woo Po-shing)

– 1,000 – – 1,000 – 1,000 0.00

Notes:

1. The number of underlying shares held under equity derivatives included the share options (being regarded for the time being as 

unlisted physically settled equity derivatives) granted by the Company, details of which are set out in paragraph headed “Share Option 

Schemes” below.

2. Of the 1,083,900,479 shares in the Company, Madam Kwong Siu-hing was deemed to be interested in 1,083,879,328 shares in the 

Company by virtue of her being a beneficiary of certain discretionary trusts for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Of the said 1,083,879,328 shares in the Company, each of Mr. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond was 

deemed to be interested in 373,426,430 shares in the Company respectively by virtue of each of them being a beneficiary of certain 

discretionary trusts for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Of the 373,426,430 shares in the Company in which each of Mr. Kwok 

Ping-kwong, Thomas and Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond was deemed to be interested, 18,199,981 shares in the Company represented 

the same interests and were duplicated between these two Directors.
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In addition, on 30 September 2010, the trustee of certain trusts (the “Trustee”), which was then indirectly interested in a total of 

1,081,739,328 shares in the Company, informed the Company that consequent upon a re-organization of such trusts, the “interests” 

as deemed under the provisions of the SFO of the various Kwok family members who are Directors of the Company in the said 

1,081,739,328 shares in the Company with effect from 29 September 2010 were as follows:

“1. Madam Kwong Siu Hing continues to be interested in all the said 1,081,739,328 shares in SHKP.

2. Each of Mr Kwok Ping Kwong Thomas and Mr Kwok Ping Luen Raymond is interested in 371,286,430 shares out of the said 

1,081,739,328 shares in SHKP.

3. Mr Kwok Ping Sheung Walter is not interested in any of the said 1,081,739,328 shares in SHKP.”

Subsequent to the above notification from the Trustee on 30 September 2010 and up to 30 June 2011, a total of 2,140,000 shares in the 

Company was acquired and the Trustee’s interests in the shares of the Company increased from 1,081,739,328 shares to 1,083,879,328 

shares.

3. In addition to the deemed interests as stated in Note 2 above, Mr. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas was also deemed to be interested in 

another 20,033,867 shares in the Company by virtue of him being a beneficiary of a discretionary trust for the purpose of Part XV of the 

SFO.

4. In addition to the deemed interests as stated in Note 2 above, Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond was also deemed to be interested in 

another 23,177,548 shares in the Company by virtue of him being a beneficiary of certain discretionary trusts for the purpose of Part 

XV of the SFO.

5. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the 343,000 shares in the Company held through Superfun Enterprises Limited 

(“Superfun”). This corporation was wholly-owned by The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (“HK China Gas”) which was 

39.88% held by Henderson Land Development Company Limited (“Henderson Land Development”). Henderson Land Development 

was taken to be 60.33% held by Henderson Development Limited (“Henderson Development”). Hopkins (Cayman) Limited (“Hopkins”) 

as trustee of a unit trust (the “Unit Trust”) owned all the issued ordinary shares of Henderson Development. Rimmer (Cayman) Limited 

(“Rimmer”) and Riddick (Cayman) Limited (“Riddick”) as trustees of respective discretionary trusts, held units in the Unit Trust. The entire 

issued share capital of Hopkins, Rimmer and Riddick were owned by Dr. Lee Shau-kee. He was taken to be interested in the 343,000 

shares in the Company held by Superfun by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

6. In response to a statement of disclosure of interests sent by the Company to Mr. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter for reconfirming his interests 

and short positions in shares and, in respect of equity derivatives, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated 

corporations as at 30 June 2011 (the “Statement of Interests”), Mr. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter informed the Company on 3 October 

2011 that he had recently been given certain information about his share interest in the Company which he found to have serious 

discrepancy with what his understanding is and that his share interest in the Company is under dispute. 

7. These shares were held by a company which was obliged to act in accordance with the instructions of Mr. Chan Kui-yuen, Thomas.
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Directors’ Report

2. Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporations of the Company

(a) SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. (“SUNeVision”)

Number of shares held
 

Name of Director

Personal 

interests 

(held as 

beneficial 

owner)

Other 

interests Total

Number of 

underlying 

shares held 

under equity 

derivatives Total

% of shares 

in issue as at 

30.06.2011

Kwong Siu-hing 106,356 2,140,0001 2,246,356 – 2,246,356 0.10

Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas – 2,140,0001 2,140,000 – 2,140,000 0.09

Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond – 3,485,0001 & 2 3,485,000 – 3,485,000 0.15

Wong Yick-kam, Michael 200,000 – 200,000 – 200,000 0.01

Kwong Chun 600,000 – 600,000 – 600,000 0.03

Wong Chik-wing, Mike 218,000 – 218,000 – 218,000 0.01

Notes:

1. Of these shares in SUNeVision, Madam Kwong Siu-hing, Mr. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond 

were deemed to be interested in 2,140,000 shares by virtue of being founder and/or beneficiaries of a certain discretionary 

trust, which represented the same interests and were therefore duplicated amongst these three Directors for the purpose of 

Part XV of the SFO.

2. In addition to the deemed interests as stated in Note 1 above, Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond was also deemed to be interested 

in another 1,345,000 shares in SUNeVision by virtue of him being a beneficiary of certain discretionary trusts for the purpose 

of Part XV of the SFO.

3. In response to the Statement of Interests, Mr. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter informed the Company on 3 October 2011 that his 

share interest in SUNeVision is under dispute. 
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(b) SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited (“SmarTone”)

Number of shares held
 

Name of Director

Other 

interests Total

Number of 

underlying 

shares held 

under equity 

derivatives Total

% of shares 

in issue as at 

30.06.2011

Kwong Siu-hing 840,0001 840,000 – 840,000 0.08

Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond 4,475,5342 4,475,534 – 4,475,534 0.44

Notes:

1. Madam Kwong Siu-hing was deemed to be interested in these shares in SmarTone by virtue of being a founder and a 

beneficiary of certain discretionary trusts for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

2. Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond was deemed to be interested in these shares in SmarTone by virtue of being a beneficiary of a 

certain discretionary trust for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

(c) Transport International Holdings Limited (“Transport International”)

Number of shares held
 

Name of Director

Personal 

interests 

(held as 

beneficial 

owner) Total

Number of 

underlying 

shares held 

under equity 

derivatives Total

% of shares 

in issue as at 

30.06.2011

Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond 393,350 393,350 – 393,350 0.10

Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter 61,522 61,522 – 61,522 0.02
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Directors’ Report

(d) Each of Madam Kwong Siu-hing, Mr. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond had the 

following interests in shares of the following associated corporations:

Name of associated 

corporation

Attributable 

holding 

through

 corporation

Attributable 

% of shares in 

issue through 

corporation as at 

30.06.2011

Actual 

holding 

through 

corporation

Actual 

% interests 

in issued shares 

as at 30.06.2011

Splendid Kai Limited 2,500 25 1,5001 15.00

Hung Carom Company Limited 25 25 151 15.00

Tinyau Company Limited 1 50 11 50.00

Open Step Limited 8 80 41 40.00

Note:

1. Madam Kwong Siu-hing, Mr. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond were deemed to be interested 

in these shares, which represented the same interests and were therefore duplicated amongst these three Directors for the 

purpose of Part XV of the SFO. These shares were held by corporations under a certain discretionary trust, in which Madam 

Kwong Siu-hing, Mr. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond were deemed to be interested by virtue of 

being founder and/or beneficiaries for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

(e) Dr. Lee Shau-kee had the following corporate interests in shares of the following associated corporations:

Name of associated corporation

Total number of 

shares held

% of shares in issue

 as at 30.06.2011

Anbok Limited 22 50.00

Billion Ventures Limited 13 50.00

Central Waterfront Construction Company Limited 

 (in members’ voluntary liquidation)

14 50.00

Central Waterfront Property Holdings Limited 1005 100.00

Central Waterfront Property Investment Holdings Limited 506 50.00

CWP Limited 17 50.00

Daily Win Development Limited 1008 25.00

E Man – Sanfield JV Construction Company Limited 14 50.00

Everise (H.K.) Limited 19 50.00

Fullwise Finance Limited 22 50.00

Gold Sky Limited 110 50.00

Jade Land Resources Limited 111 25.00

Joy Wave Development Limited (in members’ voluntary liquidation) 14 50.00

Karnold Way Limited 2,45912 24.59

Maxfine Development Limited 3,05013 33.33

Royal Peninsula Management Service Company Limited 114 50.00

Special Concept Development Limited 111 25.00

Star Play Development Limited 115 33.33

Tartar Investments Limited 30016 30.00

Teamfield Property Limited 4,91817 49.18

Topcycle Construction Company Limited 

 (in members’ voluntary liquidation)

14 50.00

Topcycle Development Limited 118 50.00

Topcycle Project Management Limited 118 50.00

World Space Investment Limited 4,91817 49.18



105SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Notes:

1. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the 343,000 shares in the Company held through Superfun. This corporation 

was wholly-owned by HK China Gas which was 39.88% held by Henderson Land Development. Henderson Land Development 

was taken to be 60.33% held by Henderson Development. Hopkins as trustee of the Unit Trust owned all the issued ordinary 

shares of Henderson Development. Rimmer and Riddick as trustees of respective discretionary trusts, held units in the Unit 

Trust. The entire issued share capital of Hopkins, Rimmer and Riddick were owned by Dr. Lee Shau-kee. He was taken to be 

interested in the 343,000 shares in the Company held by Superfun by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

2. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the two shares held through Everise (H.K.) Limited. This corporation was 50% 

held by Masterland Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be 

interested in Henderson Land Development as set out in Note 1.

3. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through Chico Investment Limited (“Chico”). This 

corporation was wholly-owned by Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson 

Land Development as set out in Note 1.

4. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through E Man Construction Company Limited. This 

corporation was wholly-owned by Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson 

Land Development as set out in Note 1.

5. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the 100 shares held through Central Waterfront Property Investment 

Holdings Limited. This corporation was 34.21% held by Starland International Limited (“Starland”), a wholly-owned subsidiary 

of Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land Development as set out in 

Note 1.

6. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in a total of 50 shares of which 34.21 shares were held through Starland 

and 15.79 shares were held through Prominence Properties Limited (“Prominence”). Starland was wholly-owned by 

Henderson Land Development. Prominence was wholly-owned by HK China Gas which was 39.88% held by Henderson Land 

Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land Development as set out in Note 1.

7. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through Starland. This corporation was wholly-owned 

by Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land Development as set out in 

Note 1.

8. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the 100 shares held through Citiright Development Limited. This corporation 

was wholly-owned by Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land 

Development as set out in Note 1.

9. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through Masterland Limited. This corporation was 

wholly-owned by Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land Development 

as set out in Note 1.

10. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through Atex Resources Limited. This corporation was 

wholly-owned by Mightymark Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee 

Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land Development as set out in Note 1.

11. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through Citiplus Limited. This corporation was 

wholly-owned by Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land Development 

as set out in Note 1.
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12. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the 2,459 shares held through Chico. This corporation was wholly-owned 

by Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land Development as set out in 

Note 1.

13. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the 3,050 shares held through Quickcentre Properties Limited. This 

corporation was 100% held by Henderson (China) Investment Company Limited of which 100% was held by Andcoe Limited, 

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson China Holdings Limited. This corporation was 100% held by Brightland Enterprises 

Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in 

Henderson Land Development as set out in Note 1.

14. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through Well Born Real Estate Management Limited. This 

corporation was wholly-owned by Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson 

Land Development as set out in Note 1.

15. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through Benewick Limited. This corporation was 100% 

held by Dorway Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken 

to be interested in Henderson Land Development as set out in Note 1.

16. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the 300 shares held through Kenforce Investment Limited. This corporation 

was wholly-owned by Henderson China Properties Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land Development. 

Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land Development as set out in Note 1.

17. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the 4,918 shares held through Billion Ventures Limited. This corporation was 

50% held by Chico, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested 

in Henderson Land Development as set out in Note 1.

18. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was deemed to be interested in the one share held through Dandy Investments Limited. This corporation was 

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henderson Land Development. Dr. Lee Shau-kee was taken to be interested in Henderson Land 

Development as set out in Note 1.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2011, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company were, under Divisions 7 and 

8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares 

or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, that were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company 

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model 

Code.

Share Option Schemes

1. Share option schemes of the Company

The Company once adopted a share option scheme on 20 November 1997 (the “Old Scheme”). In order to comply with the 

new requirements under the then revised Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, the Company by ordinary resolutions passed at 

its extraordinary general meeting held on 5 December 2002 adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) and 

terminated the Old Scheme.
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On 12 July 2010, the Company granted share options under the New Scheme to certain Directors and employees to subscribe 

for up to a total of 4,840,000 ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.50 each in the capital of the Company. Particulars of 

such share options and their movements during the year ended 30 June 2011 were as follows:

Number of share options
 

Grantee

Date of 

grant

Exercise 

price

Exercise 

period

Balance 

as at 

01.07.2010

Granted 

during 

the year

Exercised 

during 

the year

Cancelled/

Lapsed 

during 

the year

Balance

 as at 

30.06.2011

(HK$)

(I) Directors

 Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas 12.07.2010 111.40 12.07.2011 to 

 11.07.2015

N/A 100,000 – – 100,000

 Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond 12.07.2010 111.40 12.07.2011 to 

 11.07.2015

N/A 100,000 – – 100,000

 Chan Kai-ming 12.07.2010 111.40 12.07.2011 to 

 11.07.2015

N/A 100,000 – – 100,000

 Chan Kui-yuen, Thomas 12.07.2010 111.40 12.07.2011 to 

 11.07.2015

N/A 100,000 – – 100,000

 Kwong Chun 12.07.2010 111.40 12.07.2011 to 

 11.07.2015

N/A 100,000 – – 100,000

 Wong Chik-wing, Mike 12.07.2010 111.40 12.07.2011 to 

 11.07.2015

N/A 100,000 – – 100,000

(II) Associate of a Director 12.07.2010 111.40 12.07.2011 to 

 11.07.2015

N/A 48,000 – – 48,000

(III) Other employees 12.07.2010 111.40 12.07.2011 to 

 11.07.2015

N/A 4,192,000 – (136,000) 4,056,000

Notes:

1. The share options can be exercised up to 30% of the grant during the period from 12 July 2011 to 11 July 2012, up to 60% of the grant 

during the period from 12 July 2012 to 11 July 2013 and in whole or in part of the grant during the period from 12 July 2013 to 11 July 

2015.

2. The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the date on which the share options were granted was HK$109.70.

3. The accounting policy adopted for the share options is set out in note 1(v) to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not granted during the year ended 30 June 2011 any share options to any other 

persons as required to be disclosed under Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules.
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The fair values of the share options granted by the Company were determined by using the Black-Scholes model which is 

one of the models to estimate the fair value of a share option. The total value of the share options granted on 12 July 2010 

under the New Scheme amounting to approximately HK$134,745,600 was estimated based on the following variables and 

assumptions:

Risk free interest rate 1.531%1

Expected volatility 32.077%2

Expected dividend 2.289%3

Expected life of the share options 5 years4

Notes:

1. This represented the approximate yield of 5-year Exchange Fund Note traded on 12 July 2010.

2. This represented the annualized volatility of the closing price of the shares of the Company in the year preceding the date of grant.

3. This represented the yield of the expected dividend, being the historical dividend of the shares of the Company in the year preceding 

the date of grant.

4. This was based on the assumption that there was no material difference between the expected volatility over the whole life of the 

share options and the historical volatility of the shares of the Company in the year preceding the date of grant.

The value of a share option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in the variables so 

adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of a share option.

Major terms of share option scheme of the Company

The major terms of the New Scheme, in conjunction with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

1. The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the New Scheme are employees including the Executive Directors of the Company and its 

subsidiaries.

3. The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted 

under the New Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date 

of approval of the New Scheme. The 10% limit may be refreshed with the approval by ordinary resolution of the 

Shareholders. The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding 

share options granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital 

of the Company from time to time. As at 15 September 2011, the number of shares of the Company available for issue 

in respect thereof is 232,452,736 shares, representing approximately 9.04% of the issued shares of the Company.

4. The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options (whether exercised 

or outstanding) granted under the New Scheme in any 12-month period to each grantee must not exceed 1% of the 

shares of the Company in issue.

5. The exercise period of any share option granted under the New Scheme shall be determined by the Board but such 

period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant share option.

6. The Board has the authority to determine the minimum period for which a share option must be held before it can 

vest. The New Scheme itself does not specify any minimum holding period.

7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the respective share options must be made within 28 days from the date of 

offer with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from each grantee.
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8. The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for shares granted shall not be less than the highest of:

• the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange 

on the date on which an offer is made to a participant, which must be a business day;

• the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily 

quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which an offer is made; and

• the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

9. The New Scheme shall be valid and effective till 4 December 2012.

2. Share option schemes of the subsidiaries

(a) SUNeVision

SUNeVision once adopted a share option scheme (the “SUNeVision Old Scheme”). By shareholders’ ordinary resolutions 

of SUNeVision passed at its annual general meeting held on 3 December 2002, SUNeVision had adopted another share 

option scheme (the “SUNeVision New Scheme”) and terminated the SUNeVision Old Scheme. These have become 

effective on 5 December 2002 as a result of the passing of ordinary resolutions approving the same by the then 

Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on the same day.

During the year ended 30 June 2011, there were no outstanding share options under the SUNeVision New Scheme.

(b) SmarTone

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme of SmarTone adopted on 15 November 2002 (the “SmarTone 

Scheme”), SmarTone may grant share options to the participants, including directors and employees of SmarTone 

group, to subscribe for shares of SmarTone.

The movements of the share options granted to the participants pursuant to the SmarTone Scheme during the year 

ended 30 June 2011 were as follows:

(i) Before the SmarTone Bonus Issue (as defined in Note 1 below) on 6 April 2011

Number of share options
 

Grantee

Date of 

grant

Exercise 

price

Exercise 

period

Balance 

as at 

01.07.2010

Granted 

during 

the period

Exercised 

during 

the period8

Cancelled/

Lapsed 

during 

the period

Balance 

before 

SmarTone 

Bonus Issue

(HK$)

(I) D irectors  

of SmarTone

10.02.2003 9.29 10.02.2003 to 

 16.07.2011

3,000,0003 – (1,800,000) – 1,200,000

10.02.2003 9.20 02.05.2003 to 

 01.05.2012

133,5004 – (50,000) – 83,500

05.02.2004 9.00 05.02.2005 to 

 04.02.2014

970,0005 – – – 970,000

(II) O ther 

employees

 of SmarTone

05.02.2004 9.00 05.02.2005 to 

 04.02.2014

4,308,0005 – (2,798,000) – 1,510,000

01.03.2005 9.05 01.03.2006 to 

 28.02.2015

193,0006 – (193,000) – –
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(ii) After the SmarTone Bonus Issue on 6 April 2011

Number of share options
 

Grantee

Date of 

grant

Adjusted 

exercise 

price/

Exercise 

price

Exercise 

period

Balance 

before 

SmarTone 

Bonus 

Issue

Adjusted 

upon 

SmarTone 

Bonus 

Issue1

Granted 

during 

the period7

Exercised 

during 

the period9

Cancelled/

Lapsed 

during 

the period

Balance 

as at 

30.06.2011

(HK$)

(I) Directors 

  of SmarTone

10.02.2003 4.6452 10.02.2003 to 

 16.07.2011

1,200,0003 1,200,000 – (2,400,000) – –

10.02.2003 4.602 02.05.2003 to 

 01.05.2012

83,5004 83,500 – – – 167,000

05.02.2004 4.502 05.02.2005 to 

 04.02.2014

970,0005 970,000 – – – 1,940,000

13.06.2011 12.78 14.06.2012 to 

 13.06.2016

N/A N/A 12,000,000 – – 12,000,000

(II) Other 

  employees 

  of SmarTone

05.02.2004 4.502 05.02.2005 to 

 04.02.2014

1,510,0005 1,510,000 – (113,000) – 2,907,000

13.06.2011 12.78 14.06.2012 to 

 13.06.2016

N/A N/A 22,177,500 – – 22,177,500

Notes:

1. SmarTone issued bonus shares on 6 April 2011 on the basis of one bonus share for every one existing share in SmarTone held 

(the “SmarTone Bonus Issue”).

2. The SmarTone Bonus Issue gave rise to adjustments to the number of outstanding share options and the exercise prices. The 

exercise prices per share of two lots of share options granted on 10 February 2003 were adjusted from HK$9.29 to HK$4.645 

and from HK$9.20 to HK$4.60 respectively. The exercise price per share of the share options granted on 5 February 2004 was 

adjusted from HK$9.00 to HK$4.50.

3. The share options, in the original number of 5,000,000, can be exercised up to 20% from 10 February 2003, up to 40% from 

17 July 2003, up to 60% from 17 July 2004, up to 80% from 17 July 2005 and in whole from 17 July 2006.

4. The share options, in the original number of 200,000, can be exercised up to one-third from 2 May 2003, up to two-thirds from 

2 May 2004 and in whole from 2 May 2005.

5. The share options, in the original number of 9,457,000, can be exercised up to one-third from 5 February 2005, up to 

two-thirds from 5 February 2006 and in whole from 5 February 2007.

6. The share options can be exercised up to one-third from 1 March 2006, up to two-third from 1 March 2007 and in whole from 

1 March 2008.

7. The share options can be exercised up to one-third from 14 June 2012, up to two-third from 14 June 2013 and in whole from 

14 June 2014. The closing price of the shares of SmarTone immediately before the date on which the share options were 

granted was HK$12.78 per share.

8. The weighted average closing price of the shares of SmarTone immediately before the dates on which the share options were 

exercised was HK$18.55 per share.

9. The weighted average closing price of the shares of SmarTone immediately before the dates on which the share options were 

exercised was HK$12.52 per share.



111SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Save as disclosed above, no share options had been granted under the SmarTone Scheme during the year 

ended 30 June 2011 as required to be disclosed under Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules.

On 13 June 2011, SmarTone granted share options to various directors and employees of SmarTone under the 

SmarTone Scheme to subscribe for up to a total of 34,177,500 shares in the capital of SmarTone. The value of 

these share options, as calculated by using the bi-nominal option pricing model (the “Bi-nominal Model”), was 

HK$83,735,000.

The Bi-nominal Model is one of the generally accepted methodologies to calculate the value of a share option. 

The significant inputs into the Bi-nominal Model were:

Risk free interest rate 1.39%1

Expected volatility 34.75%2

Expected dividend 5.5%3

Expected life of the share options 5 years4

Notes:

1. This represents the weighted average yield of the relevant Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes corresponding to the 

expected life of the share options as at the date of grant.

2. This represents the standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns based on statistical analysis of 

daily share prices over the last five years from the date of grant.

3. This represents the yield of expected dividend which is determined by reference to the historical dividend yield of the 

shares of SmarTone.

4. This represents the life of the share options as measured from the date of grant.

The value of the share options of SmarTone is subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the 

limitation of the Bi-nominal Model. Therefore, the value may be subjective and would change should any of 

the assumptions change.
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(c) Major terms of share option scheme of the subsidiaries

(i) SUNeVision New Scheme

The major terms of SUNeVision New Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the SUNeVision New Scheme is to provide incentives to its participants.

2. The participants of the SUNeVision New Scheme include (i) executive or non-executive directors (or any 

persons proposed to be appointed as such) or any employees (whether full-time or part-time) of each 

member of the SUNeVision group; (ii) any consultants, professional and other advisers to each member 

of the SUNeVision group (or persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed for providing such 

services); (iii) any chief executives or substantial shareholders of SUNeVision; (iv) any associates of a 

director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of SUNeVision; and (v) any employees of substantial 

shareholder of SUNeVision, as absolutely determined by the board of directors of SUNeVision.

3. The total number of shares of SUNeVision which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to 

be granted under the SUNeVision New Scheme and any other share option schemes of SUNeVision 

shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of SUNeVision in issue as at the date 

of the approval of the SUNeVision New Scheme. The 10% limit may be refreshed with the approval of 

the shareholders of SUNeVision in general meeting. The maximum number of shares of SUNeVision 

which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised 

under the SUNeVision New Scheme and any other share option schemes of SUNeVision must not 

exceed 30% of the shares of SUNeVision in issue from time to time (or such higher percentage as may 

be allowed under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the 

Stock Exchange). As at 15 September 2011, the number of shares of SUNeVision available for issue in 

respect thereof was 197,333,417 shares of SUNeVision, representing approximately 8.47% of the issued 

shares of SUNeVision.

4. The total number of shares of SUNeVision issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options 

granted under the SUNeVision New Scheme to each participant (including exercised, cancelled and 

outstanding share options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares  

of SUNeVision in issue. As at 15 September 2011, the total number of shares of SUNeVision in issue was 

2,329,208,031.

5. A share option granted under the SUNeVision New Scheme may be exercised at any time during the 

option period after the share option has been granted by the board of SUNeVision. A share option 

period is a period to be determined by the board of SUNeVision at its absolute discretion and notified 

by the board of SUNeVision to each grantee as being the period during which a share option may be 

exercised, such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant of the share option.

6. Unless otherwise determined by the board of SUNeVision and specified in the offer letter at the time 

of the offer, there is neither any performance targets that need to be achieved by the grantee before a 

share option can be exercised nor any minimum period for which a share option must be held before 

the share option can be exercised.

7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the share options must be made within 28 days from the 

date of grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.
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8. The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for shares of SUNeVision shall be at least the highest 

of:

• the closing price of the shares of SUNeVision as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations 

sheet on the date on which an offer is made to a participant, which must be a business day;

• the average of the closing prices of the shares of SUNeVision as stated in the Stock Exchange’s 

daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which an 

offer is made; and

• the nominal value of the shares of SUNeVision.

9. The SUNeVision New Scheme shall be valid and effective up to and inclusive of 3 December 2012 

unless otherwise terminated under the terms of the SUNeVision New Scheme.

(ii) SmarTone Scheme

The major terms of the SmarTone Scheme, in conjunction with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing 

Rules, are as follows:

1. The purpose of the SmarTone Scheme is to reward participants who have made a valuable 

contribution to the growth of the SmarTone group and to enable the SmarTone group to recruit and/

or to retain employees who are regarded as valuable to the SmarTone group or are expected to be 

able to contribute to the business development of the SmarTone group.

2. Any employee, agent, consultant or representative of SmarTone or any of its subsidiaries, including 

any director of SmarTone or any of its subsidiaries who has made valuable contribution to the growth 

of the SmarTone group based on his work experience, industry knowledge, performance, business 

connections or other relevant factors, will be eligible to participate in the SmarTone Scheme at the 

invitation of the directors of SmarTone.

3. SmarTone can issue share options so that the total number of shares of SmarTone that may be 

issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under all the share option schemes does not 

in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of adoption of the SmarTone Scheme. 

SmarTone may renew this limit at any time, subject to its shareholders’ approval and the issue of a 

circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules provided that the number of shares to be issued upon 

exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option 

schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue of SmarTone from time to time. At 15 September 

2011, the number of shares available for issue in respect thereof is 47,785,134 shares which represents 

approximately 4.65% of the issued ordinary shares of SmarTone.

4. The maximum entitlement for any participant is that the total number of shares of SmarTone issued 

and to be issued upon exercise of share options granted and to be granted in any 12-month period up 

to the date of the latest grant does not exceed 1% of the relevant class of shares in issue of SmarTone.

5. No share option may be exercised later than 10 years after it has been granted and no share option 

may be granted more than 10 years after the date on which the SmarTone Scheme is adopted by 

SmarTone in general meeting.

6. The SmarTone Scheme does not specify any minimum holding period before the share option can 

be exercised but the board of SmarTone has the authority to determine the minimum holding period 

when the share options are granted.
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7. Acceptance of offer to grant a share option shall be sent in writing together with a remittance in 

favour of SmarTone of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant must be received by the secretary 

of SmarTone within 28 days from the date of the making of such offer.

8. The option price per share payable upon the exercise of any share option will be determined by the 

directors of SmarTone upon the grant of such share option. It will be at least the higher of:–

• the average closing prices of the shares of SmarTone as stated in the daily quotations sheets 

issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the day of offer 

of such share option;

• the closing price of the shares of SmarTone as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations 

sheet on the day of offer of such share option, which must be a business day; and

• the nominal value of a share of SmarTone.

9. The SmarTone Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the 

adoption of the SmarTone Scheme on 15 November 2002.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than the share option schemes as mentioned above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries 

a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or 

debenture of the Company or of any other body corporate.

Interests of Substantial Shareholder and Other Persons

As at 30 June 2011, substantial shareholder of the Company and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the 

Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed 

to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be 

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of shares held

Personal 

interests 

(held as 

beneficial 

owner)

Corporate 

interests

(interests of 

controlled 

corporation)

Other 

interests Total

% of shares

 in issue as at

 30.06.2011

(I) Substantial shareholder

 HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited 

  (“HSBC Trustee”)

– – 1,081,745,371 1,081,745,3711 42.09

(II) Other persons

 Adolfa Limited (“Adolfa”) 195,374,547 16,059,981 – 211,434,5282 8.23

 Bertana Limited (“Bertana”) 195,374,547 16,059,981 – 211,434,5282 8.23

 Cyric Limited (“Cyric”) 195,374,547 16,059,981 – 211,434,5282 8.23

 Asporto Limited (“Asporto”) 159,851,902 – – 159,851,9022 6.22

 Rosy Result Limited (“Rosy Result”) 159,851,902 – – 159,851,9022 6.22

 Thriving Talent Limited

  (“Thriving Talent”)

159,851,902 – – 159,851,9022 6.22
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1. On 30 September 2010, HSBC Trustee, as trustee of certain trusts which was then indirectly interested in a total of 1,081,739,328 shares in the 

Company, informed the Company that consequent upon a re-organization of such trusts, the “interests” as deemed under the provisions of the 

SFO of the various Kwok family members who are Directors of the Company in the said 1,081,739,328 shares in the Company with effect from 

29 September 2010 were as follows:

“1. Madam Kwong Siu Hing continues to be interested in all the said 1,081,739,328 shares in SHKP.

2. Each of Mr Kwok Ping Kwong Thomas and Mr Kwok Ping Luen Raymond is interested in 371,286,430 shares out of the said 

1,081,739,328 shares in SHKP.

3. Mr Kwok Ping Sheung Walter is not interested in any of the said 1,081,739,328 shares in SHKP.”

2. Of the shares held respectively by Adolfa, Bertana and Cyric, 16,059,981 shares were held through a corporation of which each of Adolfa, 

Bertana and Cyric was interested in one-third of its entire issued share capital. These 16,059,981 shares represented the same interests and were 

therefore duplicated amongst these companies. Further, the shares held respectively by Adolfa, Bertana, Cyric, Asporto, Rosy Result and Thriving 

Talent formed part of the shares in which HSBC Trustee was deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2011, the Company had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief 

executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall 

to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register 

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Emolument Policy and Long Term Incentive Schemes of the Group

As at 30 June 2011, the Group employed more than 35,000 employees. The related employees’ costs for the year amounted 

to approximately HK$6,420 million. Compensation for the Group is made reference to the market, individual performance and 

contributions. Extensive use of bonuses to link performance with reward is adopted. The Group also provides a comprehensive benefit 

package and career development opportunities, including retirement schemes, medical benefits, and both internal and external 

training appropriate to individual needs.

A share option scheme is in place to provide appropriate long-term incentive of key staff of the Group. Details of the share option 

scheme of the Company are set out in the section headed “Share Option Schemes”.

Basis of Determining Emolument to Directors

The same remuneration philosophy is applicable to the Directors of the Company. Apart from benchmarking against the market, 

the Company looks at individual competence, contributions and the affordability of the Company in determining the exact level of 

remuneration for each Director. Appropriate benefits schemes are in place for the Executive Directors, including the share option 

scheme, similar to those offered to other employees of the Group.

Bank and Other Borrowings

Details of bank and other borrowings are set out in notes 23 and 25 to the financial statements.

Interest Capitalized

Interest capitalized during the year amounted to HK$232 million (2010: HK$233 million).

Charitable Donations

HK$340 million (2010: HK$115 million) was donated during the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

The interests of Directors of the Company in competing businesses that were required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the 

Listing Rules as informed by the relevant Directors were as follows:

Madam Kwong Siu-hing and Messrs. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond (collectively the “Kwok Family”) 

maintain certain interests in businesses which consist of property developments and investments in Hong Kong and Singapore and 

hotel operation in Hong Kong. As such, they are regarded as being interested in such competing businesses with the Group (the 

“Excluded Businesses”). However, when compared with the dominance and size of operations of the Group, such Excluded Businesses 

are immaterial. The Kwok Family does not have property developments and investments business and hotel operation business in the 

Mainland China. Therefore they are not regarded as being interested in such Excluded Businesses in the Mainland China. The Group 

does not have (i) property developments and investments in locations other than in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Singapore and (ii) 

hotel operation in locations other than in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Messrs. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter and Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond are non-executive directors of Transport International, whose 

businesses consist of property holdings and development. In this regard, each of Messrs. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter and Kwok 

Ping-luen, Raymond is regarded as being interested in such Excluded Businesses.

Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond is a non-executive director of Wing Tai Properties Limited (“Wing Tai”). The businesses of Wing Tai consist 

of property development, property investment and management, and hospitality investment and management. Therefore, Mr. Kwok 

Ping-luen, Raymond is regarded as being interested in such Excluded Businesses.

Mr. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter has interests in companies which have property development, property investment and management in 

Hong Kong and Mainland China. Therefore, Mr. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter is regarded as being interested in such Excluded Businesses 

during the year. However, when compared with the dominance and size of operations of the Group, such Excluded Businesses are 

immaterial.

Dr. Lee Shau-kee is the chairman and managing director of Henderson Land Development and Henderson Investment Limited. He is 

also the chairman of Miramar Hotel and Investment Company, Limited and a non-executive director of Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) 

Company Limited. In addition to his directorships, Dr. Lee Shau-kee is also deemed as a substantial shareholder of such companies by 

virtue of his deemed interest therein under the Listing Rules and the SFO. The businesses of these companies principally consist of 

investment holding, property development and investment in Hong Kong and Mainland China, hotel operation, project and property 

management, construction, department store operation, provision of finance and infrastructure, which may be deemed to constitute 

the Excluded Businesses. As such, he is regarded as being interested in such Excluded Businesses. Dr. Lee Shau-kee is a Non-Executive 

Director of the Company, who is not involved in the daily management of the Group.

Sir Po-shing Woo is a director of Henderson Development. He is also a non-executive director of Henderson Land Development where 

Mr. Woo Ka-biu, Jackson acts as his alternate director. The businesses of Henderson Development and Henderson Land Development 

principally consist of investment holding, property development and investment in Hong Kong and Mainland China, hotel operation, 

project and property management, construction, provision of finance and infrastructure. In addition, both Sir Po-shing Woo and 

Mr. Woo Ka-biu, Jackson hold directorships in certain companies of Kailey Group and/or are entitled to exercise, or control the exercise 

of, 10% or more of the voting power at any general meeting of these companies. The businesses of these companies consist of 

property development and investment. Accordingly, Sir Po-shing Woo and Mr. Woo Ka-biu, Jackson are regarded as being interested 

in such Excluded Businesses. Sir Po-shing Woo, being a Non-Executive Director of the Company, and his alternate, Mr. Woo Ka-biu, 

Jackson, are not involved in the daily management of the Group.

Other than the family businesses of the Kwok Family, the above-mentioned Excluded Businesses are managed by separate companies 

or public listed companies with independent management and administration. In this respect, coupled with diligence of the 

Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses 

independent of, and at arms length from, the Excluded Businesses mentioned above.
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Connected Transaction

During the period from the date of the 2009/10 annual report of the Company to the date of this report, the Company did not have 

any connected transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material 

interest subsisted at any time during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, less than 30% of the Group’s sales and less than 30% of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the Group’s five 

largest customers combined and five largest suppliers combined respectively.

Auditor

The retiring auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, has signified their willingness to continue in office. A resolution will be 

proposed at the 2011 Annual General Meeting to re-appoint them and to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Audit Committee

The annual results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. The Group’s consolidated financial 

statements have been audited by the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and they have issued an unqualified 

opinion.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out on pages 82 to 87.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the 

Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond

Vice Chairman & Managing Director Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 15 September 2011
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Directors

Kwong Siu-hing (Note 1)

Chairman & Non-Executive Director (Age: 82)

Madam Kwong has been the Chairman and a Non-Executive Director of the Company since May 2008. She is the wife of Mr. Kwok 

Tak-seng, the late Chairman of the Company. Madam Kwong has over 40 years of experience in real estate business. In addition, she 

has participated in various charity and community activities for Sun Hung Kai Properties-Kwoks’ Foundation Limited and The T.S. Kwok 

Foundation Limited. Madam Kwong is well-respected by the Board and the senior management of the Company. She is the mother of 

Messrs. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter, Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond and the sister of Mr. Kwong Chun.

Save as disclosed above, Madam Kwong does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial 

shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company. She did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other 

public companies, the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Madam Kwong received a fee of HK$120,000 for being the Chairman of the Company.

Dr. the Hon Lee Shau-kee

DBA(Hon), DSSc(Hon), LLD(Hon), GBM

Vice Chairman & Non-Executive Director (Age: 82)

Dr. Lee has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company for the last 39 years. He is the founder and chairman and managing 

director of Henderson Land Development Company Limited and Henderson Investment Limited. He has been engaged in property 

development in Hong Kong for more than 55 years. He is also chairman of The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited and 

Miramar Hotel and Investment Company, Limited as well as a director of Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited and The 

Bank of East Asia, Limited. In July 2007, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region awarded Dr. Lee the Grand 

Bauhinia Medal for his distinguished community service.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Lee did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Dr. Lee received a fee of HK$110,000 for being a Vice Chairman of the Company.
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Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas (Note 2)

Hon DBA, Hon DEng, MSc (Bus Adm), BSc (Eng), FCPA(Aust.), SBS, JP

Vice Chairman & Managing Director (Age: 59)

Mr. Kwok is Vice Chairman and Managing Director of the Company and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He 

has been with the Group for 34 years. He is also chairman of Route 3 (CPS) Company Limited and joint chairman of IFC Development 

Limited. He is a non-executive director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. and an independent non-executive director of The Bank of East 

Asia, Limited. Mr. Kwok holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from The London Business School, University of London, 

and a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from Imperial College, University of London. He also holds an Honorary Doctorate in 

Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an Honorary Doctorate in Business Administration from The Open 

University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of The Hong Kong Management Association and also a fellow of The Australia Certified Public 

Accountants.

He is chairman of the board of directors of the Faculty of Business and Economics, The University of Hong Kong. He is also an 

executive vice president and a member of the executive committee of The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong. He also 

serves as a government appointed member of the Commission on Strategic Development. In July 2007, the Government of the Hong 

Kong Special Administrative Region awarded Mr. Kwok the Silver Bauhinia Star for his distinguished community service.

In the past, Mr. Kwok served as a member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee, the Construction Industry Council, the Council 

for Sustainable Development, Business Facilitation Advisory Committee and as a non-official member of the Provisional Minimum 

Wage Commission. He also previously served as a board member of the Community Chest of Hong Kong and as a council member of 

the Hong Kong Construction Association.

Mr. Kwok is an Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou and a Standing Committee member of the Ninth Chinese People’s Political Consultative 

Conference Shanghai Committee.

Mr. Kwok is the son of Madam Kwong Siu-hing, the younger brother of Mr. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter and the elder brother of 

Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwok did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas and does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Kwok received a fee of HK$110,000 for being a Vice Chairman of the Company and other 

emoluments of approximately HK$2.18 million.
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Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond (Note 2)

Hon LLD, Hon DBA, MBA, MA (Cantab), JP

Vice Chairman & Managing Director (Age: 58)

Mr. Kwok is Vice Chairman and Managing Director of the Company and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He 

has been with the Group for 33 years. He holds a Master of Arts degree in Law from Cambridge University, a Master degree in Business 

Administration from Harvard University, an Honorary Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The Open University of Hong 

Kong and an Honorary Doctorate degree in Laws from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is chairman of SUNeVision Holdings 

Ltd. and SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a non-executive director of Transport International Holdings Limited and 

Wing Tai Properties Limited, and an independent non-executive director of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited.

In civic activities, Mr. Kwok is a director of The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, a member of the General Committee 

of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and vice chairman of the council of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kwok 

is the son of Madam Kwong Siu-hing, and the younger brother of Messrs. Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter and Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwok did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas and does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Kwok received a fee of HK$110,000 for being a Vice Chairman of the Company and other 

emoluments of approximately HK$2.41 million.

Yip Dicky Peter

MBA, BBS, MBE, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director (Age: 64)

Mr. Yip has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since September 2004. He is also a member of the Audit 

Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He joined The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 

(“HSBC”) in Hong Kong in 1965 with working experiences in London, China and San Francisco. Mr. Yip worked in a number of 

departments of HSBC, which include trade services, corporate banking, group consultancy service and regional training. His previous 

assignment prior to becoming CEO China had been in personal financial services, covering jobs in marketing, card products, customer 

service and sales, with responsibilities over consumer business in Hong Kong. From January 2003 to April 2005, Mr. Yip was appointed 

chief executive China business, based in Shanghai; meanwhile, he was also a director of Bank of Shanghai, Ping An Insurance and 

Ping An Bank in China. Since April 2005, Mr. Yip has become a general manager of HSBC. He has also been appointed executive vice 

president of Bank of Communications since May 2005.

Mr. Yip is an elected associated member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers, London and was educated in Hong Kong with an MBA 

from The University of Hong Kong. He has a Certified Financial Planner certificate issued by the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong 

Kong. He received the Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award in 1984 for his contribution to the banking industry and the community 

in Hong Kong. Mr. Yip was awarded the MBE by the British Government in 1984. In 1999, he was appointed Unofficial Justice of Peace 

in Hong Kong. In 2000, he was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. 

In June 2008, he was elected a member of Shanghai Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. In addition, 

he is the honorary chairman of Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in China and a member of Financial Planning Standards Council of 

China.

Mr. Yip is active in community and youth activities in Hong Kong and is a member of a number of service organisations such as Hong 

Kong Committee for United Nations Children Fund and the 8th National Council of Red Cross Society of China.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yip did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Yip received fees of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company, HK$200,000 for 

being a member of the Audit Committee of the Company and HK$50,000 for being a member of the Nomination Committee of the 

Company.
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Professor Wong Yue-chim, Richard

SBS, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director (Age: 59)

Professor Wong has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since May 2005. He is the Chairman of both the 

Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is Professor of Economics at The University of Hong 

Kong. Professor Wong has been active in advancing economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong and Mainland China through his 

work as founding director of both the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research and Hong Kong Institute of Economics and Business 

Strategy. Professor Wong was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative 

Region for his contributions in education, housing, industry and technology development. In addition, he was appointed Justice of 

the Peace in July 2000. Professor Wong studied Economics at the University of Chicago and graduated with a Doctorate in Philosophy.

Professor Wong serves as an independent non-executive director of CK Life Sciences Int’l., (Holdings) Inc., Great Eagle Holdings Limited, 

Orient Overseas (International) Limited, Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited and The Link Management Limited as the 

manager of The Link Real Estate Investment Trust. He is also an independent non-executive director of Industrial and Commercial Bank 

of China (Asia) Limited (whose shares were withdrawn from listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21 December 

2010). In addition, Professor Wong was also a member of the managing board of the Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, Professor Wong did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Professor Wong received fees of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company, and 

HK$60,000 for being the Chairman of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Li Ka-cheung, Eric

LLD, DSocSc., B.A., GBS, OBE, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director (Age: 58)

Dr. Li was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in May 2005; and is currently an Independent Non-Executive 

Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is also an 

independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of SmarTone 

Telecommunications Holdings Limited.

Dr. Li is the senior partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive director 

of Transport International Holdings Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, China Resources 

Enterprise, Limited, RoadShow Holdings Limited and Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. He was an independent non-executive director 

of Meadville Holdings Limited which has voluntarily withdrawn listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Dr. Li is a member of The 11th National Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, an advisor to Ministry of 

Finance on international accounting standards, a convenor cum member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel and a member of 

the Commission on Strategic Development. He was a former member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong and the chairman of its 

Public Accounts Committee and was also a past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Li did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, the securities 

of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, 

substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Dr. Li received fees of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company, HK$240,000 for 

being the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company and HK$50,000 for being a member of the Remuneration Committee 

of the Company. Also, he received other emoluments of a total of HK$240,000 for being a director and the chairman of the audit 

committee and the remuneration committee of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited.
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Dr. Fung Kwok-lun, William

SBS, OBE, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director (Age: 62)

Dr. Fung has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since February 2010. He graduated from Princeton 

University with a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering and also holds an MBA degree from the Harvard Graduate School of 

Business. He was conferred the degrees of Doctor of Business Administration, honoris causa, by The Hong Kong University of Science 

and Technology and by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Dr. Fung was the group managing director of Li & Fung Limited and became the executive deputy chairman with effect from 18 May 

2011. He also serves as a non-executive director of Convenience Retail Asia Limited and Trinity Limited. Dr. Fung is also an independent 

non-executive director of VTech Holdings Limited, Shui On Land Limited and The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels Limited; and an 

independent director of Singapore Airlines Limited. Dr. Fung resigned as a director of the formerly listed Integrated Distribution 

Services Group Limited on 6 April 2011.

Dr. Fung has held key positions in major trade associations. He is the past chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, 

the Hong Kong Exporters’ Association and the Pacific Economic Cooperation Committee. He has been awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star 

by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2008.

Dr. Fung does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling 

shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Dr. Fung received a fee of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company.

Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter

D.Sc, Msc (Lond), DIC, MICE, JP

Non-Executive Director (Age: 60)

Mr. Kwok has been with the Group for 37 years. Mr. Kwok was Chairman and Chief Executive of the Group from 1990 to 2008. He holds 

an Honorary Doctor of Science degree and a Master of Science degree in Civil Engineering from the Imperial College of Science and 

Technology, University of London, and is a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers, U.K. and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institution 

of Engineers. He is an honorary fellow of the School of Accountancy of The Central University of Finance and Economics, honorary 

trustee of Tongji University and Nanjing University. He was an executive director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. and has become a non-

executive director with effect from 10 March 2011. Mr. Kwok is also a non-executive director of Transport International Holdings 

Limited and director of Wilson Parking (Holdings) Limited and Hung Cheong Import & Export Company, Limited.

He is also a director of The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong and Tsimshatsui East Property Developers’ Association Ltd. 

and honorary treasurer of the Federation of Hong Kong Hotel Owners. On the community front, he is the past chairman of the Former 

Directors Committee of the Hong Kong Community Chest. He is also a member of MBA Programmes Committee of The Chinese 

University of Hong Kong and an honorary member of The Court of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Kwok is an Honorary Citizen of Beijing and Guangzhou and a Standing Committee member of the National Committee of the 

Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Kwok is the committee member of the French Asian Art Society, the Chevalier 

of the Légion d’Honneur Club Hong Kong Chapter, Honorary President of The Association for the Promotion of Global Chinese Traders 

Fraternity Ltd. and Honorary Chairman of The Association of Global Chinese Art Collectors Fraternity. Mr. Kwok is the son of Madam 

Kwong Siu-hing, and the elder brother of Messrs. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwok did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas and does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Kwok received a fee of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company and other 

emoluments of approximately HK$30,000.
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Sir Po-shing Woo

Hon.LLD., FCIArb, F.I.Mgt., FInstD, FHKMA

Non-Executive Director (Age: 82)

Sir Po-shing Woo has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since August 1972. He is a director of Henderson Development 

Limited, a non-executive director of Henderson Land Development Company Limited and a consultant of Jackson Woo & Associates in 

association with Ashurst Hong Kong. He was a non-executive director of Henderson Investment Limited. He was admitted to practise 

as solicitor in England and Hong Kong and is also a fellow of The Hong Kong Management Association, The Chartered Institute of 

Arbitrators, The Institute of Management and The Institute of Directors of England. He was awarded an Hon.LLD. by The City University 

of Hong Kong and is a fellow of King’s College of London as well as honorary professor of Nankai University of Tianjin. He is also 

the founder of the Woo Po Shing Medal in Law and the Woo Po Shing Overseas Summer School Travelling Scholarship, both at The 

University of Hong Kong, and the Woo Po Shing Professor (Chair) of Chinese and Comparative Law at The City University of Hong 

Kong. He is the father of Mr. Woo Ka-biu, Jackson, an Alternate Director of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Sir Po-shing Woo did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas, and does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Sir Po-shing Woo received a fee of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company.

Kwan Cheuk-yin, William (Note 3)

LLB

Non-Executive Director (Age: 76)

Mr. Kwan has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since July 1999 and is a member of the Nomination Committee of 

the Company. As a managing partner with the solicitors firm of Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, Mr. Kwan has 49 years of experience in legal 

practice. He is a former director and advisor and currently a voting member of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, a past member of 

the Stamp Advisory Committee, vice chairman of the Hong Kong Scout Foundation Management Committee, vice chairman of the 

Scout Performing Arts Committee, chairman of Air Activities Committee, elected member of Scout Counsel of Hong Kong, president 

of the Hong Kong Branch of the King’s College London Association, president of the Hong Kong Philatelic Society, life member of 

the Federation of Inter-Asia Philately, President of FIAP Grand Prix Club, a permanent advisor of Wah Yan (Hong Kong) Past Students 

Association, a director and honorary secretary of Wah Yan Dramatic Society, a committee member and legal advisor of South China 

Athletic Association and former vice manager of its Football Section as well as manager of its Ten Pin Bowling Section and an honorary 

legal advisor of the Hong Kong Society for Reproductive Society.

Mr. Kwan was commissioner general and vice chairman of the Organizing Committees of the Hong Kong 1994, 1997, 2001, 2004 and 

2009 International Stamp Exhibitions. He served on the Hong Kong Golf Club General Committee on several occasions in various 

capacities. He graduated from King’s College, London University and is a fellow of King’s College London, the Institute of Arbitrators 

and the Royal Philatelic Society, London.

Mr. Kwan did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, the securities of which are listed 

in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders 

or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Kwan received fees of HK$100,000 and HK$50,000 for being a Director and a member of 

the Nomination Committee of the Company respectively.
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Lo Chiu-chun, Clement (Notes 1 and 3)

Non-Executive Director (Age: 81)

Mr. Lo was an Executive Director and the Company Secretary of the Company for over 20 years until his resignation in February 1998. 

He had been with the Group, prior to the listing of the Company, for 28 years before he resigned from both positions. He is currently a 

Non-Executive Director of the Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He has been in the property 

development industry since the 1960s.

Mr. Lo did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, the securities of which are listed in 

Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or 

controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Lo received fees of HK$100,000 and HK$50,000 for being a Director and a member of 

the Remuneration Committee of the Company respectively.

Wong Yick-kam, Michael

MBA, BBA

Non-Executive Director (Age: 59)

Mr. Wong has been a Non-Executive Director and the Group Principal Advisor of the Company since January 2010. He was an Executive 

Director of the Company from January 1996 to December 2009 and had been with the Group for 28 years before he retired from his 

executive roles. He is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He obtained his Bachelor of Business Administration 

and Master of Business Administration degrees from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was an executive director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd., a non-executive director and a member of the audit committee 

of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited and the deputy chairman and a non-executive director of RoadShow Holdings 

Limited. He was also a non-executive director, an alternate director to Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond and a member of the audit 

committee of Wing Tai Properties Limited.

Mr. Wong is chairman of the Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association. He is a member of the Government of the Hong Kong Special 

Administrative Region’s Steering Committee on Promotion of Volunteer Service, Steering Committee on Child Development Fund, 

Steering Committee on Promotion of Electric Vehicles and Social Welfare Advisory Committee. He is also a member of the Board of 

Trustees of New Asia College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a member and treasurer of the Council of The Open University 

of Hong Kong.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Wong received fees of HK$100,000 and HK$200,000 for being a Director and a member 

of the Audit Committee of the Company respectively.
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Chan Kai-ming

CEng, FIStructE, MICE

Executive Director (Age: 79)

Mr. Chan has been an Executive Director of the Company since January 1981. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the 

Company. He also served as an appointed member of the District Board of Shatin for three years from 1985.

Mr. Chan did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, the securities of which are listed in 

Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or 

controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Chan received a fee of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company and other 

emoluments of approximately HK$3.51 million.

Chan Kui-yuen, Thomas

B Comm

Executive Director (Age: 65)

Mr. Chan has been an Executive Director of the Company since September 1987. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of 

the Company. He graduated from the United College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1973 and is now 

responsible for land acquisitions and project planning matters. Mr. Chan is a non-executive director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. He 

was awarded as honorary university fellowship of The Open University of Hong Kong in 2007.

Mr. Chan is a committee member of Infrastructure Development Services Advisory Committee and China Trade Advisory Committee 

of Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He is also a committee member of China Sub-Committee of The Real Estate Developers 

Association of Hong Kong and Land Sub-Committee of Land and Development Advisory Committee. In addition, he is a director of 

The Hong Kong Vietnam Chamber of Commerce and a member of the MBA Advisory Board of The University of Hong Kong.

In the past, Mr. Chan was a council member of The Open University of Hong Kong and a member of the Health Care Study Group of 

The Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre. He was also an ordinary member of the Estate Agents Authority.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Chan received a fee of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company and other 

emoluments of approximately HK$11.11 million.
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Kwong Chun

Executive Director (Age: 82)

Mr. Kwong has been an Executive Director of the Company since October 1992. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of 

the Company. He graduated from the Zhong Nan Finance & Economics College of Wuhan in China. He worked for the Guangzhou 

office of the People’s Bank of China before coming to Hong Kong in 1962 to work for Eternal Enterprises Limited. He was transferred 

to Sun Hung Kai Enterprises Limited in 1963. In 1972, the Company became a listed company and he has worked for it ever since. 

Mr. Kwong is the younger brother of Madam Kwong Siu-hing.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwong does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial 

shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company. He did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other 

public companies, the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Kwong received a fee of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company and other 

emoluments of approximately HK$4.21 million.

Wong Chik-wing, Mike

MSc(IRE), FHKIS, RPS (BS), JP

Executive Director (Age: 55)

Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with distinction and holds a Master degree in International Real 

Estate. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and a registered professional surveyor. He joined the Group in 1981 and 

has been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since January 1996. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the 

Company and is currently responsible for project management matters of the Group’s development projects.

Mr. Wong did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, the securities of which are listed 

in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders 

or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Wong received a fee of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company and other 

emoluments of approximately HK$16.25 million.
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Chan Kwok-wai, Patrick

MBA, FCPA, FCCA, FCPA (Aust.), ACIS, TEP

Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer (Age: 55)

Mr. Chan has been an Executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since July 2009. He is also a member of 

the Executive Committee of the Company. He obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of Warwick, 

England in 1993. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered 

Certified Accountants (“ACCA”) as well as the CPA Australia. He is also a member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and 

Administrators and Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners.

Mr. Chan started his career at Ernst & Young and worked for a number of banks and listed companies in Hong Kong. He joined Hang 

Seng Bank Limited (“Hang Seng”) in 1995, of which he became chief financial officer in 1998. He also sat on the executive committee 

of Hang Seng, and was an executive director of Hang Seng from 2005 till 2009. Mr. Chan was previously a vice-chairman of Hang Seng 

Bank (China) Limited, and a director, an executive committee member and a remuneration committee member of Industrial Bank Co., 

Ltd.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Quality Education Fund Steering Committee, the Protection of Wages on Insolvency Fund Board, 

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) Government Scholarship Fund Investment Committee, the Investment 

Sub-committee of the Beat Drugs Fund Association HKSAR, a council member of the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment 

Authority (“HKEAA”), chairman of the finance committee of the HKEAA and a member of the Standing Committee on Language 

Education and Research. He is also a member of the Admissions, Budgets and Allocations Committee of The Community Chest of 

Hong Kong and the General Committee of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. He is convenor of the Working Group of 

Finance Directors/Financial Controllers of the Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong and a member of the Professional 

Development Sub-committee of the ACCA Hong Kong. He is a director of Hang Seng School of Commerce, a member of the Board 

of Governors of Hang Seng Management College Limited, and chairman of the finance committee of both institutions. Mr. Chan is 

an advisory board member of several universities in Hong Kong and a member of the Investment Committee of the Foundation of 

Tsinghua University Centre for Advanced Study Co. Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, Mr. Chan received a fee of HK$100,000 for being a Director of the Company and other 

emoluments of approximately HK$14.70 million.
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Woo Ka-biu, Jackson

MA (Oxon)

Alternate Director to Sir Po-shing Woo (Age: 49)

Mr. Woo was appointed as an Alternate Director to Sir Po-shing Woo in October 2002. Mr. Woo is a director of Kailey group of 

companies. He holds a Master’s degree in Jurisprudence from Oxford University and is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong, Australia, 

England and Wales. Mr. Woo is currently a partner of Jackson Woo & Associates in association with Ashurst Hong Kong and was a 

director of N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited. Prior to that, he was a partner in the corporate finance department of Woo, 

Kwan, Lee & Lo. Mr. Woo was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, 

Ltd. with effect from 22 July 2011. Mr. Woo is also an alternate director to Sir Po-shing Woo, a non-executive director of Henderson 

Land Development Company Limited. He was an alternate director to Sir Po-shing Woo who was a non-executive director of 

Henderson Investment Limited. In January 2008, Mr. Woo was awarded 2008 World Outstanding Chinese Award by the United World 

Chinese Association and Honorary Doctor Degrees from The University of West Alabama. He is the son of Sir Po-shing Woo.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Woo did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in any other public companies, 

the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas, and does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior 

management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Woo shall not be entitled to receive from the Company any remuneration in 

respect of his appointment as Alternate Director except only such part (if any) of the remuneration otherwise payable to his appointor 

as such appointor may by notice in writing to the Company from time to time direct.

All the Directors and Alternate Director of the Company have not entered into any service contract with the Company. Directors 

are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of 

association of the Company. For the Non-Executive Directors, they are also subject to a term of approximately two years commencing 

from the date of the annual general meeting at which they are re-elected and expiring at the commencement of the annual general 

meeting to be held two years thereafter, and they shall be eligible for re-election at that annual general meeting upon the expiry of 

their term of office. The Directors’ fees are proposed by the Board and approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting 

and their other emoluments are subject to review by the Board from time to time pursuant to the power given to it under the articles 

of association of the Company with reference to their contribution in terms of time, effort and accomplishments.

Senior Management

The Executive Directors of the Company are also members of senior management of the Group.

Notes:

1. Madam Kwong Siu-hing and Mr. Lo Chiu-chun, Clement will retire from office by rotation at the annual general meeting to be held on 8 December 

2011 (the “AGM”) and have informed the Company that they will not seek re-election as Directors.

2. Mr. Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas and Mr. Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond have been appointed as joint Chairmen of the Company, such appointment to 

take effect from the close of the AGM after the passing of the special resolution on the proposed amendments to the articles of association of the 

Company. They will both continue to serve as Managing Directors and Executive Directors of the Company.

3. Mr. Kwan Cheuk-yin, William has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Lo Chiu-chun, Clement with effect 

from 9 December 2011.



129SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Organization Chart & Senior Executives



130 SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11
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(1) Executive Committee

Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas

Hon DBA, Hon DEng, MSc (Bus Adm), 

BSc (Eng), FCPA(Aust.), SBS, JP

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond

MA(Cantab), MBA, Hon DBA, Hon LLD, JP

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

Chan Kai-ming

CEng, FIStructE, MICE

Executive Director 

(Architectural & Engineering)

Chan Kui-yuen, Thomas

B Comm

Executive Director 

(Project Planning & Development)

Kwong Chun

Executive Director 

(Building Management)

Wong Chik-wing, Mike

MSc(IRE), FHKIS, RPS(BS), JP

Executive Director 

(Project Management)

Chan Kwok-wai, Patrick

MBA, FCPA, FCCA, FCPA(Aust.), ACIS, TEP

Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer 

(Corporate Planning & Strategic 

Investment)

(1a) Chairman’s Office

Yung Wing-chung

Corporate Advisor

Chin Ping-fai, Johnny

MA

Manager

Overton, Thomas Mc Donald

BSc, MBA

Manager

Lam Po-tung, Josephine

BA

Manager

(2) Architectural and Engineering

Chan Kai-ming

CEng, FIStructE, MICE

Executive Director

Chan Hong-ki, Robert

BSc, MRICS, MHKIS, RPS(BS)

Authorized Person

Manager

Li Kwong-hing

BSc(Eng), MSc, DIC, CEng, MIMechE, 

FCIBSE, MHKIE, RPE

Manager

Lau Chi-kin

MSc, CEng, FIStructE, FHKIE, MICE, RPE, 

RSE

Authorized Person

PRC Class 1 Registered Structural 

Engineer Qualification

Manager

Ng Tze-kwan, Jeff

BArch, MAIBC, MRAIC, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Deputy Manager

Choi Siu-chuen

MHKIE

Deputy Manager

Li Ka-wing

Deputy Manager

Chan Wai-hing, Clara

Deputy Manager

Lam Kwok-leung, Kelvin

BSc(Eng), CEng, MIStructE, MHKIE, RPE, 

RSE

Deputy Manager

Chiu Wai-kuen, Stephen

BSc(Eng)

Deputy Manager

Tang Wai-man, Tony

BA(AS), BArch, HKIA, ASC Member

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

PRC Class 1 Registered Architect 

Qualification

Deputy Manager

Ho Koon-ho, Eddie

BEng(Hons), MSc, CEng, MIStructE, 

MHKIE, MICE, MCIArb, RPE, RSE

PRC Class 1 Registered Structural 

Engineer Qualification

Deputy Manager

(3) Project Management

Wong Chik-wing, Mike

MSc(IRE), FHKIS, RPS(BS), JP

Executive Director

Tam Tin-fong, Martin

BArch, RIBA, FHKIA, ASC Member

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

PRC Class 1 Registered Architect 

Qualification

Manager

Au Yeung Shiu-keung

BSc(Eng), CEng, FHKIE, FCIBSE, FIET, 

FIEAust

Manager

Lee Tit-sun, Augustine

BArch, FHKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Manager

Chu Kwok-kit, Ringo

BA(AS), BArch, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Manager

Woo Yan-fan, Stella

BA(AS), MArch, MBA, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Manager

Chan Hong-ki, Robert

BSc, MRICS, MHKIS, RPS(BS)

Authorized Person

Manager

Ng Chak-kin, Clarence

BA(AS), BArch, RIBA, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Manager
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Tsang Wai-ming, Thomas

BArch, MCIArb, AHKIArb, RIBA, HKIA, 

RAIA, MAIB

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Deputy Manager

Wong Wai-yin, May

BID, ASID

Deputy Manager

Cheung Chin-hung, Sunny

BEng(Hons), CEng, MHKIE, MICE, 

MGSHK, EUR.ING, RPE, BEAM Pro

Deputy Manager

Pau Wai-keung

MEEM, MEM, CEng, CFM, MHKIE, 

MCIBSE, MIEE, MASHRAE, MHKCS, RPE,

FSOE, FIPlantE, SMCMES, CSMe

Deputy Manager

(4) Special Projects

Tung Chi-ho, Eric

BA(AS)Hons, BArch, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

Chung Wing-tim, Alain

BA(AS)Hons, BArch, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Manager

Cheung Wai-tak, Vitus

BSc(Eng), MHKIE, MCIBSE, MIEAust, MIEE

Deputy Manager

So Wai-lik, Johnson

BSc, MBA, FRICS, FHKIS, FSZCEA, ACIArb, 

AHKIArb, RPS(QS)

Deputy Manager

Mak Mang-tim, Timothy

BA(Hons), BArch, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Deputy Manager

Tse Pak-wing

Deputy Manager

(5) Construction

Wong Chik-wing, Mike

MSc(IRE), FHKIS, RPS(BS), JP

Executive Director

Kwok Leung Kit-kan, Ingrid

MSc(Bus Adm), BSc(Hons), CEng, MBCS, 

MHKIE, CITP

Manager

Tsoi Siu-ho, Robert

BSc, MSc, DipCon, FCPA, ARCS, DIC

Manager (Central Functions)

Mo Kon-fei, Kenneth

MSc(Eng), MBA, LLB, DipMS, MHKIE, 

CEng, MICE, RSE

Authorized Person

PRC Class 1 Registered Structural 

Engineer Qualification

Manager (Construction Management)

Tsoi Yuk-man, Desmond

MA, MSc, FCIArb, MRICS, MHKIS, MCIOB

Manager (Construction Management)

Lee Kwok-wa, Chris

MAIB

Manager (Construction Management)

Chan Hon-yee

ACMA, CPA

Deputy Manager 

(Construction Management)

Hui Lin-sing, Roger

BSc(Eng), CEng, MICE, MIStructE, MHKIE, 

RPE, RSE

Deputy Manager 

(Construction Management)

Fung Chi-on, Ricky

Deputy Manager (Purchasing)

Lau Wai-keung, Dennis

MRICS, MHKIS

Deputy Manager 

(Contract Subletting and Quantity 

Surveying)

Chan Kin-wah, Jonathan

MEM, AssocRICS, TAHKIS

Deputy Manager (Contract Subletting)

Lam Fuk-wing

BSc(Civil Eng)

Deputy Manager 

(Construction Management)

Cheung Kam-fan

BBA

Deputy Manager 

(Construction Management)

Yan Po-keung, Dickson

Deputy Manager

(Construction Management)

Leung Kwok-to

Deputy Manager

(Construction Management)

(5a) Mechanical and Electrical 
Installation

Tsoi Siu-ho, Robert

BSc, MSc, DipCon, FCPA, ARCS, DIC

Manager

Lam Chung-mo, Moses

BEng(Hons), CEng, MIEE, MHKIE, RPE

Deputy Manager

Sin Hung-fai

Deputy Manager (Fire Services)

(6) Project Monitoring

Lu Chee-yuen, Spencer

BEng, MEng, CEng, MIStructE, MHKIE, 

RPE

Authorized Person

Manager

Wong Wai-tung

MA Arb, DipArb, FHKIE, FCIOB, FCIArb, 

RPE

Deputy Manager

Tsang Wai-keung, Savio

MBA, MRICS, MHKIS, MCIOB, MHKICM, 

MCIArb, MASI

Deputy Manager

(7) Project Planning and 
Development

Chan Kui-yuen, Thomas

B Comm

Executive Director
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Wong Chik-wing, Mike

MSc(IRE), FHKIS, RPS(BS), JP

Executive Director

Chu Kwok-kit, Ringo

BA(AS), BArch, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Manager

Lu Chee-yuen, Spencer

BEng, MEng, CEng, MIStructE, MHKIE, 

RPE

Authorized Person

Manager

Fung Man-lok, Ronnie

MHKIS

Manager

Chan Po-ling, Margaret

BES(Hons), MSc(GIS), MHKIP, MCIP

Registered Professional Planner

PRC Registered Urban Planner 

Qualification

Deputy Manager

(8) Hotel

Ricco M. DeBlank

Chief Executive Officer, Hotel Division

Chow Yum-chong, Francis

FCCA, FCPA

Vice President (Finance), Hotel Division

Wong Chak-fung, Peter

PhD, CHA, FHKIoD, FCMI, FIH, MIMC, 

MBCS, MTMA

Vice President (Operations), 

Hotel Division

Cheung Kin-man, Ricky

B Comm, CPA, CPA(Aust.)

Deputy Vice President (Finance), 

Hotel Division

a. The Royal Garden

Chan Tin-yau, Keven

Vice President and General Manager

Chan Chun-keung, Louis

Director of Operations

Chan Suk-ching, Jenny

Hotel Manager

Lai Che-wah, Johnny

Executive Assistant Manager

Yuen Ching-hoi, Horace

Financial Controller

b. Royal Park Hotel

Cheung Cheuk-man, Carman

General Manager

Tam Kam-ming, Andrew

Financial Controller

c. Royal Plaza Hotel

Wong Chak-fung, Peter

PhD, CHA, FHKIoD, FCMI, FIH, MIMC, 

MBCS, MTMA

General Manager

Lee Chi-wah, Howard

MA, BA

Executive Assistant Manager

Lee Chi-keung, Marvey

ACCA, MAAT

Financial Controller

d. Royal View Hotel

Au Ka-yiu, Stephen

General Manager

Yik Hoi-lun, William

Financial Controller

(9) Valuation

Fung Chu-hee, Andrew

MSc(IRE), MRICS, MHKIS, RPS(GP)

Chartered Valuation Surveyor

Manager

(10) Sales

a. Lui Ting, Victor

BBA

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

Chan Hon-lun, Andy

BSc(Hons), MRICS, MHKIS, RPS

Deputy Manager

Woo Chi-yuen, Allen

BSc(Hons), MRICS, MHKIS

Deputy Manager

b. Chow Kwok-yin, Eric

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

Cheuk Sau-mun, Amy

BSc(Hons)

Deputy Manager

Yim Dao-kit

Deputy Manager

Yang Joe-tsi, Edgar

MA

Deputy Manager

c. Tung Chi-ho, Eric

BA(AS)Hons, BArch, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

(11) Leasing

Retail

a. Chan Kai-ming

CEng, FIStructE, MICE

Executive Director

Lam Ka-keung, Henry

BSc(Hons), MSc(Const & Real Est)

Manager

Yau Hin-chung, William

BA(AS)

Deputy Manager

b. Fung Sau-yim, Maureen

BSc(Hons)Est. Mgt., 

MHousMan(Distinction), MBA, MRICS, 

MHKIS, FISCM, MHIREA

Manager

c. Chung Sau-lin, Fiona

BBA, MBA, MRICS, MHKIS

Manager
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d. Ho Lick-tin

Manager

Fung Yick-lam, Cris

Deputy Manager

Office

Wong Chin-wah, Jimmy

BSc(Est Mgt), Cert Ed, MSISV, MHKIS, 

MAPFM, FHIREA, RPS, RPHM

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

Lo King-wai

MBA, MRICS, MCIOB, MHKIS, RPS

Manager

Lau Lai-ching, Ellijah

Dip.BS(Mktg), FHIREA, MCIH, MHKIH, 

FISCM

Deputy Manager

Residential (Signature Homes)

Kang Min, Mavis

BSoc.Sc(Hons), DipSurv

Deputy Manager

Industrial

Yau Man-fat, Kelvin

BSc(Hons), MBA, MHousMan, 

PgDipInvMgt, DipHousMan, FHKIH,

MCIH, MHKSI, MIFMA, MIMgt, RPHM

Manager

(12) China

Kwong Chun

Executive Director

Chan Kui-yuen, Thomas

B Comm

Executive Director

So Chung-keung, Alfred

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

Kwong Ching-wai, Alkin

BSc(Eng), PgDIT, CEng, MIStructE, FHKIE, 

FHKMA, MHIREA, RPE, RSE, JP

Authorized Person

Manager

Au Ho-cheung, David

BSc(Arch), MArch, HKIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

PRC Class 1 Registered Architect 

Qualification

Manager

Tang Wai-chung, Ted

Manager

Huang Shaomei, Echo

Manager

Ching Wai-chuen, Antonio

BA(AS), BArch, RIBA, HKIA, RAIA

Registered Architect

Authorized Person

Manager

Choy Chi-keung, Ian

BA, MHousMan

Deputy Manager

Ong Kim-leang, Jasmine

BSc(Est Mgt)

Deputy Manager

Li Iu-tong, Thomas

MA

Deputy Manager

Man Chi-fung, Rick

BA, PDip(Real Estate)

Deputy Manager

(13) Transport Advisory

Lee Chak-cheong, Roger

BSc, MSc, CEng, MICE, MCIHT, MILT

Manager

(14) Hong Yip Service 
Company Limited

Kwong Chun

Executive Director

Kwong Ching-wai, Alkin

BSc(Eng), PgDIT, CEng, MIStructE, FHKIE, 

FHKMA, MHIREA, RPE, RSE, JP

Authorized Person

Manager

Mok Chi-hung

FCIH, FHKIH, FHIREA, RPHM

Manager

Kwok Chan-fai

MCIH, MHKIH, RPHM, EHKIM

Deputy Manager

Wong Kei-on

BA, MCIH, MHKIH, RPHM

Deputy Manager

(15) Corporate Planning and 
Strategic Investment

Chan Kwok-wai, Patrick

MBA, FCPA, FCCA, FCPA(Aust.), ACIS, TEP

Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer

Corporate Communications

Ng Shuk-chau, Margaret

MA(Distinction), Hon Dip(Distinction)

Manager

Tse Man-kuen, Winnie

Deputy Manager

Corporate Planning

Sum Hong-ning, Brian

BA, MSc, CFA, FCCA

Deputy Manager

Economic Research

Mak Nak-keung

BSoc.Sc, MPhil

Manager

Wong Kit-hung, Xavier

BSoc.Sc, MEcon, CFA

Deputy Manager
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Cheong Suk-ying, Linda

BSoc.Sc, MBA, CFA

Deputy Manager

Investor Relations

Chan Man-kit, Thomas

BSoc.Sc, MSoc.Sc

Deputy Manager

(16) Financial Investment

Hong Pak-cheung, William

BSc

Manager

Poon Chun-wing, Johnny

BSoc.Sc, MBA, FCCA, CFA

Deputy Manager

(17) Corporate Finance

Chan Kwok-wai, Patrick

MBA, FCPA, FCCA, FCPA(Aust.), ACIS, TEP

Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer

Au Man-to

LLB, FCIS, ACIB

Manager

Kwok Yue-yee, Amy

B Comm

Manager

(18) Property Investment

Lui Ting, Victor

BBA

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

Chan Kwok-kin, Slayman

MSc, FRICS, FHKIS, RPS, RPHM

Deputy Manager

(19) Accounts

Chan Kwok-wai, Patrick

MBA, FCPA, FCCA, FCPA(Aust.), ACIS, TEP

Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer

Pun Chun-sun, Bernard

MSc, FCA, FCPA

Chief Accountant

Wu Tze-cheung, Philip

BA(Hons), FCPA, MIHRM(HK)

Manager

Leung Yu-kai, David

ACA, FCCA, FCPA

Manager

Li Ching-kam, Frederick

FCCA, CPA

Manager

Lee Hung-chak, Maurice

BBA, LLB, FCCA, CPA, CTA

Deputy Manager

Fok Yat-cheong, Edward

MSc(Eng), AHKIB, MHKCS

Deputy Manager 

(Information Technology)

Kwok Tai-wai, David

Deputy Manager 

(Information Technology)

So Wai-kei, Godwin

BA(Hons), ACCA, CPA, ACIS, ACIB

Deputy Manager

(20) SmarTone/SUNeVision

SmarTone Telecommunications 

Holdings Limited

Li, Douglas

Chief Executive Officer

SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.

Tsim Wing-kit, Alfred

Chief Executive Officer

(21) Legal/Company Secretarial

Yung Sheung-tat, Sandy

BA(Law)Hons

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

Wong Siu-mun, Katherine

ACIS, ACS

Deputy Company Secretary

Tse Kar-lun, Frankie

LLB(Hons)

Deputy Manager

Chong Tin-cho

BSoc.Sc, LLB(Hons), LLM, LLD

Deputy Manager

Yeung Ming-yip, Jason

LLB(Hons)

Deputy Manager

Law Kai-chung, Edmund

LLB(Hons)

Deputy Manager

(22) Wilson Group/Logistics/YATA

Wilson Group

Koch, Gary Alfred

Vice Chairman and Executive Director

Siu Hon-wah, Thomas

Managing Director

Cheng Siu-hung, Paul

Chief Executive Officer

Autotoll Limited

Fong Ping, Vincent

Director of Tollways

Lui Sung-yee, Alan

Director of Corporate Affairs

So Wing-shing, Vincent

Director of Parking

Wong Yuk-lan, Nancy

Director of Finance & Administration

Wu Tung-chai, Peter

Director of Equipment & Services

Logistics Services

Chung Wai-yin, Jessie

BA, MBA

Director and General Manager

River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd.

Leung Lai-chi, Michelle

MMgt, MSoc.Sc

Director and Chief Operating Officer

Airport Freight Forwarding Centre 

Company Limited

Chan Kei-yan, Paul

BA, MBA

Director and General Manager

Hoi Kong Container Services Company 

Limited



135SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Lam Wai-kui, Raymond

BBA(Hons)

General Manager, 

Terminal Operations & Engineering

River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd.

So Susan

BBA, MSc(Real Est), FCCA, FCPA

General Manager

Park Island Transport Company Limited

The YATA Department Store

Chong Wai-chung, Daniel

Managing Director

Hui Hing-sang, Sam

Dip.BS

General Manager (Store Management)

Au Sin-lun, Catherine

BA

General Manager 

(Concession Management)

Cheung Kai-leung, Raymond

B Comm, MBA, CPA, CPA(Aust.)

General Manager 

(Finance & Administration)

(23) Hung Kai Finance/
SHKP Insurance

Hung Kai Finance Company 

Limited

Yung Wing-chung

Consultant

Au Mo-cheung, Alex

EMBA(Distinction), PDipCD, DBA, 

MHKSI, FHKIoD

Consultant

Leung Ho-man, Wilson

BSocWork, MBA, CFA

Deputy Manager

Sun Hung Kai Properties 

Insurance Limited

Chow Ka-yin

Consultant

Wong Kwai-chuen, Andrew

BBA, MBA, ACII

Chartered Insurer

Manager

Yim Ka-yan, Amy

MBA, ANZIIF (Snr Assoc)

Deputy Manager

(24) Kai Shing Management 
Services Ltd

Wong Chin-wah, Jimmy

BSc(Est Mgt), Cert Ed, MSISV, MHKIS, 

MAPFM, FHIREA, RPS, RPHM

Executive Director

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Ltd

Chan Kam-fai

MCIH

Manager

Lam Man-pak, Patrick

BA(Hons), MCIH, RPHM

Manager

Lee Cheung-yiu, Gordon

BSc(Hons), MSc(Facility Mgt), 

MSc(Building Services Eng), 

MSc(Fire & Safety Eng), MRICS, MCIOB, 

MHKIS, MSOE, MIPlantE, MASHRAE, 

RPS(BS)

Deputy Manager

Hon Shuk-ching, Irene

Deputy Manager

Tsui Elaine

BBA

Deputy Manager

(25) Public Affairs/
Community Relations

Public Affairs

Lee Luen-fai

BA, Cert Ed

Manager

Community Relations

Lee Kam-chung

Manager

(26) Internal Audit

Chiu Yue-ming, Daniel

MAcc, FCCA, FCPA, FCIS, ACMA, 

FCPA(Aust.)

Manager

Wong Chung-wai, Barry

BA(Hons), MBA, FCCA, CPA

Deputy Manager

Hui Sui-tak, Andrew

MBA, FCCA, CPA

Deputy Manager

(27) Internal Affairs

Tang Chak-hin

BBA, MBA

Manager

Chan Choi-yin, Clara

MIHRM(HK)

Deputy Manager 

(Human Resources Management)

Ho Kui-yuen, Kenneth

BSoc.Sc, MBA, DTM

Deputy Manager 

(Training & Development)

Chow Chiu-mei, Grace

BBA, MA, MIHRM(HK)

Deputy Manager (Human Resources)



136 SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Financial Contents

137 Independent Auditor’s Report

138 Consolidated Income Statement

139 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

140 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

141 Parent Company Statement of Financial Position

142 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

143 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

144 Notes to the Financial Statements

190 Principal Subsidiaries

196 Principal Jointly Controlled Entities

198 Principal Associates



137SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries 

(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 138 to 198, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s statements of 

financial position as at 30 June 2011, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 

consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in 

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the 

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 

consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion 

solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do 

not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit 

in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those 

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 

the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 

financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the 

Group as at 30 June 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial 

Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

15 September 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2011
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

(Restated)

Notes 2011 2010

Revenue 2(a) 62,553 33,211

Cost of sales (37,259) (17,142)

Gross profit 25,294 16,069

Other income 574 663

Selling and marketing expenses (2,498) (1,408)

Administrative expenses (2,004) (1,482)

Operating profit before change in fair value of investment properties 2(a) 21,366 13,842

Increase in fair value of investment properties 25,070 16,469

Operating profit after change in fair value of investment properties 46,436 30,311

Finance costs (1,095) (670)

Finance income 62 31

Net finance costs 3 (1,033) (639)

Share of results (including increase in fair value of investment properties net of 

 deferred tax of HK$4,696 million (2010 (restated): HK$2,885 million)) of:

 Associates 171 232

 Jointly controlled entities 10,573 5,029

2(a)&9(b) 10,744 5,261

Profit before taxation 4 56,147 34,933

Taxation 7 (7,359) (4,292)

Profit for the year 2(a) 48,788 30,641

Attributable to:

 Company’s shareholders 48,097 30,039

 Non-controlling interests 691 602

48,788 30,641

Dividends 8

 Interim dividend paid 2,442 2,180

 Final dividend proposed 6,168 4,755

8,610 6,935

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

Earnings per share based on profit attributable to

 the Company’s shareholders

 (reported earnings per share)

9(a)

Basic and diluted $18.71 $11.71

Earnings per share excluding the effects of changes in

 fair value of investment properties net of deferred tax

 (underlying earnings per share)

9(b)

Basic and diluted $8.36 $5.41
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2011
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

(Restated)

2011 2010

Profit for the year 48,788 30,641

Exchange difference on translating financial statements of foreign operations

 – exchange difference arising during the year 1,917 337

 – exchange difference released on disposal of foreign operations (47) –

1,870 337

Cash flow hedge:

 – fair value losses on effective hedging instruments (1) (3)

 – fair value losses transferred to income statement 2 1

1 (2)

Available-for-sale investments:

 – fair value gains 475 250

 – fair value gains transferred to income statement on disposal (26) (30)

449 220

Share of other comprehensive income of associates and jointly controlled entities

 – exchange difference on translating financial statements of foreign operations 645 118

 – fair value gains on available-for-sale investments 3 –

648 118

Other comprehensive income for the year 2,968 673

Total comprehensive income for the year 51,756 31,314

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

 Company’s shareholders 50,916 30,710

 Non-controlling interests 840 604

51,756 31,314
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2011
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

(Restated) (Restated)

30 June 30 June 1 July

Notes 2011 2010 2009

Non-current assets

Investment properties 10 212,863 184,001 158,593

Fixed assets 11 17,896 16,825 21,612

Associates 13 3,249 3,111 3,057

Jointly controlled entities 14 38,686 32,715 28,718

Loan receivables 15 275 346 465

Other financial assets 16 3,362 3,554 2,953

Intangible assets 17 5,049 4,357 4,647

281,380 244,909 220,045

Current assets

Properties for sale 18 98,861 84,923 68,347

Debtors, prepayments and others 19 23,932 16,060 15,611

Other financial assets 21 1,126 850 602

Bank balances and deposits 22 7,898 8,204 8,143

131,817 110,037 92,703

Current liabilities

Bank and other borrowings 23 (9,682) (11,262) (2,644)

Trade and other payables 24 (20,452) (17,667) (14,600)

Deposits received on sales of properties (3,525) (10,672) (2,854)

Taxation (5,141) (5,266) (3,990)

(38,800) (44,867) (24,088)

Net current assets 93,017 65,170 68,615

Total assets less current liabilities 374,397 310,079 288,660

Non-current liabilities

Bank and other borrowings 25 (50,753) (34,126) (39,381)

Deferred taxation 26 (10,610) (7,189) (5,507)

Other long-term liabilities 27 (839) (739) (707)

(62,202) (42,054) (45,595)

NET ASSETS 312,195 268,025 243,065

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 28 1,285 1,285 1,282

Share premium and reserves 305,680 261,936 237,117

Shareholders’ funds 306,965 263,221 238,399

Non-controlling interests 5,230 4,804 4,666

TOTAL EQUITY 312,195 268,025 243,065

Directors:

Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas

Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond
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Parent Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2011
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

Notes 2011 2010

Non-current assets

Subsidiaries 12 30,148 30,074

Current assets

Debtors, prepayments and others 19 7 7

Amount due from a subsidiary 20 90,470 79,247

Bank balances 22 8 –

90,485 79,254

Current liabilities

Bank and other borrowings 23 – (3)

Trade and other payables 24 (20) (20)

(20) (23)

Net current assets 90,465 79,231

NET ASSETS 120,613 109,305

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 28 1,285 1,285

Share premium and reserves 30 119,328 108,020

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 120,613 109,305
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2011
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

Notes 2011 2010

Operating activities

 Cash generated from operations 31a 36 9,340

 Hong Kong profits tax paid (4,106) (1,306)

 Outside Hong Kong tax paid (276) (80)

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (4,346) 7,954

Investing activities

 Purchase of jointly controlled entities (1,914) –

 Purchase of an associate – (5)

 Purchase of other financial assets (131) (1,071)

 Net repayments from/(advances to) associates and

  jointly controlled entities 1,948 (668)

 Additions to fixed assets (2,255) (2,778)

 Additions to investment properties (6,503) (5,940)

 Payment of telecommunications licence fees (972) (101)

 Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 703 3,100

 Proceeds from disposal of an associate 1 –

 Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets 686 464

 Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 21 5

 Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 31b 490 –

 Interest received from investments 220 116

 Dividends received from listed investments 93 94

 Dividends received from unlisted investments 6 4

 Dividends received from associates and jointly controlled entities 4,804 2,159

 Loans and advances repaid 81 343

Net cash used in investing activities (2,722) (4,278)

Financing activities

 Bank and other borrowings raised 20,601 9,179

 Repayment of bank and other borrowings (5,869) (6,010)

 (Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits (71) 49

 Interest paid (1,198) (811)

 Interest received 62 31

 Proceeds from issue of shares by a subsidiary 56 –

 Purchase of additional interests in subsidiaries (1,039) (75)

 Payment for repurchase of shares by subsidiaries (194) (77)

 Increase in fundings from non-controlling interests 1,776 83

 Dividends paid to shareholders (7,197) (5,867)

 Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (294) (76)

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 6,633 (3,574)

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (435) 102

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,772 7,649

Effect of foreign exchange rates changes 74 21

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 31c 7,411 7,772
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2011
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to Company’s shareholders

Share

Capital

Share

Premium

Capital

reserves

Investment

revaluation

reserve

Exchange

reserve

Retained

profits Total

Non-

controlling

interests Total

At 1 July 2009       

– as originally stated 1,282 35,782 761 545 3,222 180,676 222,268 4,652 226,920

– change in accounting policy – – – – (3) 16,134 16,131 14 16,145

– as restated 1,282 35,782 761 545 3,219 196,810 238,399 4,666 243,065

Profit for the year – – – – – 30,039 30,039 602 30,641

Other comprehensive income/(expenses) 

 for the year – – (2) 220 453 – 671 2 673

Total comprehensive income for the year – – (2) 220 453 30,039 30,710 604 31,314

Issue of shares, net of expenses 3 669 – – – – 672 – 672

Transfer to capital reserves arising from 

 repurchase of its shares by a subsidiary – – 1 – – (1) – – –

Interim dividend paid – – – – – (2,180) (2,180) – (2,180)

Final dividend paid – – – – – (4,359) (4,359) – (4,359)

Adjustments arising upon acquisition of 

 additional interests in subsidiaries – – (21) – – – (21) (390) (411)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests – – – – – – – (76) (76)

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 (restated) 1,285 36,451 739 765 3,672 220,309 263,221 4,804 268,025

Profit for the year – – – – – 48,097 48,097 691 48,788

Other comprehensive income for the year – – 1 452 2,366 – 2,819 149 2,968

Total comprehensive income for the year – – 1 452 2,366 48,097 50,916 840 51,756

Recognition of equity-settled share-based 

 payments – – 76 – – – 76 1 77

Transfer to capital reserves arising from 

 repurchase of its shares by a subsidiary – – 1 – – (1) – – –

Shares issued by a subsidiary on exercise of 

 share options – – (9) – – – (9) 9 –

Interim dividend paid – – – – – (2,442) (2,442) – (2,442)

Final dividend paid – – – – – (4,755) (4,755) – (4,755)

Adjustments arising upon acquisition of 

 additional interests in subsidiaries – – (42) – – – (42) (1,437) (1,479)

Release upon disposal of subsidiaries – – – – – – – (11) (11)

Contribution from non-controlling interests – – – – – – – 1,318 1,318

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests – – – – – – – (294) (294)

At 30 June 2011 1,285 36,451 766 1,217 6,038 261,208 306,965 5,230 312,195
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and 

Interpretations (collectively, “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) 

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Rules Governing the Listing of Securities 

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The financial statements are prepared under the 

historical cost convention except for investment properties and certain financial instruments, which are measured at 

fair value, as explained in the principal accounting policies set out below.

b. Changes in accounting policies 

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following new and revised standards, amendments 

and interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) 

issued by the HKICPA, which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 July 2010.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20091

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20102

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of right issues

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional exemptions for first-time adopters

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited exemptions from comparative HKFRS 7 disclosures for first-time adopters

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions

HK(IFRIC) – INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments

HK INT 5 Presentation of financial statements – classification by the borrower 

 of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand clause

1 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

The adoption of the above new HKFRSs has no significant impact on the Group’s results and financial position.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

b. Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)

Up to the date of approval for the issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number 

of new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year. These include 

the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20103

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of items of other comprehensive income4

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets5

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee benefits6

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures7

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate financial statements6

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in associates and joint ventures6

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures – transfers of financial assets8

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments6

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements6

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements6

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities6

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement6

HK(IFRIC) – INT 14 (Amendment) Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement7

3 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

The Group decided to early adopt the amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets (“HKAS 

12 (amendments)”), in respect of the recognition of deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair value under 

HKAS 40, Investment property. The Group is currently reviewing the other new and revised standards, amendments 

and interpretations and does not anticipate the adoption will have any significant impact on the Group’s results and 

financial position.

c. Early adoption of HKAS 12 (amendments)

The change in policy arising from HKAS 12 (amendments) is the only change which has had a material impact on 

the current or comparative periods. As a result of this change in policy, the Group now measures any deferred tax 

liability in respect of the Group’s investment properties with reference to the tax liability that would arise if the 

carrying amount of the investment properties at the reporting date were recovered through sale, unless the property 

is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic 

benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. Previously, where these properties 

were held under leasehold interests, deferred tax was generally measured using the tax rate that would apply as a 

result of recovery of the assets value through use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

c. Early adoption of HKAS 12 (amendments) (cont’d)

As a result of the early adoption of amendments to HKAS 12, the comparative figures for 2010 and 2009 have been 

restated to reflect the change in accounting policy, as summarized below.

Effect on Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

30 June 

2011

30 June 

2010

1 July 

2009

Increase in associates 17 11 7

Increase in jointly controlled entities 4,107 3,334 2,926

Decrease in deferred taxation 18,018 14,816 13,212

Increase in retained profits 22,048 18,130 16,134

Increase/(decrease) in exchange reserves 69 13 (3)

Increase in non-controlling interests 25 18 14

Effect on Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 30 June

2011 2010

Increase in share of results of associates 6 4

Increase in share of results of jointly controlled entities 717 392

Decrease in taxation 3,202 1,604

Increase in profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders 3,918 1,996

Increase in profit attributable to the non-controlling interests 7 4

Increase in total comprehensive income attributable to the Company’s shareholders 3,974 2,012

Increase in basic and diluted earnings per share HK$1.52 HK$0.78

d. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all its 

subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year and include the Group’s interests in associates and jointly controlled entities 

on the basis set out in note 1(h) and note 1(i) below, respectively. The financial statements of the associates and jointly 

controlled entities used for this purpose are either coterminous with the financial statements of the Company or cover 

a year ended not more than three months before the Company’s year-end. The results of subsidiaries, associates and 

jointly controlled entities acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement 

from the effective dates of acquisition and to the effective dates of disposal. All material intra-group transactions and 

balances are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group 

and its associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate or 

jointly controlled entity.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing control over the 

subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-

controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference 

between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid 

or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets or liabilities consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the 

original business combination and their share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

e. Revenue

Revenue derived from the Group’s principal activities comprises proceeds from sale of properties (excluding proceeds 

on development properties sold prior to their completion which are included in deposits received on sale of 

properties under current liabilities), gross rental income from properties letting under operating leases, revenue from 

hotel operation, telecommunications, transportation, infrastructure and logistics and revenue derived from other 

business activities including property management, construction, financial services, internet infrastructure, enabling 

services and department store. It does not include the revenue of associates and jointly controlled entities.

f. Revenue recognition

Revenue of a transaction is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 

will flow to the Group and these benefits can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) Property sales

Profit from sale of properties is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 

properties are transferred to the buyers. Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage 

are included in current liabilities.

(ii) Rental income

Rental income from properties letting under operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the 

lease terms.

(iii) Hotel operation

Revenue from hotel operation is recognized upon provision of services.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 

interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

(v) Construction

Revenue in respect of building construction job is recognized based on the stage of completion method 

measured by reference to the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total costs for the 

contract.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

(vii) Use of internet services centre facilities

Revenue from customer use of internet services centre facilities is recognized ratably over the term of the 

agreement.

(viii) Telecommunications

Revenue from telecommunication is recognized when the service is rendered.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

f. Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(ix) Toll income

Toll income is recognized upon the passage of vehicles through tunnel.

(x) Department store

Revenue from sale of own-bought goods and commission income from concession and consignment sales is 

recognized upon the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

(xi) Provision of container and cargo handling service

Revenue from the provision of container and cargo handling service is recognized when the service is 

rendered.

(xii) Others

Other revenue including property management service fee, car parking management fee and insurance 

income are recognized when the services are rendered.

g. Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company directly or indirectly controls more than half of the voting power, or 

controls the composition of the board of directors. Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the Company’s financial 

statements at cost less impairment loss.

h. Associates

Associates are those in which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint 

control, over the management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

Results of associates are incorporated in the consolidated income statement to the extent of the Group’s share of post-

acquisition profits less losses.

Interests in associates are accounted for in the consolidated statement of financial position under the equity method 

and are carried at cost as adjusted for post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of their results and other 

comprehensive income less any identified impairment loss.

i. Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity 

which is subject to joint control.

(i) Jointly controlled entities

Jointly controlled entities involve the establishment of a separate entity in which the Group has a long-term 

interest and over which the Group is in a position to exercise joint control with other venturers in accordance 

with contractual arrangements.

Results of jointly controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated income statement to the extent 

of the Group’s share of post-acquisition profits less losses whereas accounted for in the Company’s income 

statement only to the extent of dividend income.

Interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in the consolidated statement of financial position 

under the equity method and are carried at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share 

of their results and other comprehensive income less any identified impairment loss whereas in the Company’s 

statement of financial position at cost less impairment loss.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

i. Joint ventures (cont’d)

(ii) Jointly controlled assets

Jointly controlled assets are assets of a joint venture over which the Group has joint control with other 

venturers in accordance with contractual arrangements and through the joint control of which the Group has 

control over its share of future economic benefits earned from the assets.

The Group recognized in the financial statements its share of jointly controlled assets and any liabilities 

incurred jointly with other venturers according to their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in 

respect of its interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual basis. Income from the 

sale or use of the Group’s share of the output of the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any 

expenses incurred by the joint ventures, are recognized in the income statement when it is probable that the 

economic benefits associated with the transactions will flow to or from the Group.

j. Intangible assets

(i) Telecommunication licences

A unified carrier licence, which is a right to establish and maintain a telecommunication network and to 

provide mobile services in Hong Kong, is recorded as an intangible asset. Upon the issuance and renewal 

of the relevant mobile licences, the cost thereof, which is the discounted value of the minimum annual fees 

payable over the licence period as specified in the respective licencing agreement and directly attributable 

costs of preparing the asset for its intended use, is recorded together with the related obligations. Amortization 

is provided on the straight line basis over the remaining licence period from the date when the asset is ready 

for its intended use.

The difference between the discounted value and the total of the minimum annual fee payments represents 

the effective cost of financing and, accordingly, for the period prior to the asset being ready for its intended 

use, is capitalized as part of the intangible asset. Subsequent to the date when the asset is ready for its 

intended use, such finance costs are charged to the consolidated income statement in the year in which they 

are incurred.

Variable annual payments on top of the minimum annual payments, if any, are recognized in the consolidated 

income statement as incurred.

(ii) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the net fair value of the Group’s share of the 

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries, associates and jointly 

controlled entities at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment loss and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

Impaired losses recognized on goodwill are not reversed. Goodwill on acquisition of associates and jointly 

controlled entities is included in investments in associates and jointly controlled entities respectively.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 

liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognized immediately in the income statement.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is 

included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

j. Intangible assets (cont’d)

(iii) Concession assets

The Group has entered into a service concession arrangement with the HKSAR Government to participate in 

the development, financing, operation and maintenance of toll road infrastructures. Under the arrangement, 

the Group carries out the construction of toll road for the granting authority and receives in exchange a 

right to operate the toll road and the entitlement to toll fees collected from users of the toll road. The assets 

including the cost of tunnel, approach road and buildings, electrical and mechanical systems under the 

service concession arrangement are recorded as intangible assets. Once the underlying infrastructure of the 

concession arrangement is completed, the concession assets are amortized over the term of the concession 

on a straight line basis.

k. Financial assets, financial liability and equity

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, 

loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale investments. The classification depends on 

the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and is reviewed by the management at every reporting date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability 

and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 

that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument 

or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability on initial 

recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise marketable securities held for trading. At each year 

end date subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value 

are recognized in profit or loss.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted in an active market and are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less 

impairment loss.

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 

fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-

to-maturity investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment loss. Any impairment loss is 

recognized in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

(iv) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as any of the 

other categories. At each year end date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale investments 

are measured at fair value by reference to market prices. Changes in fair value are recognized in other 

comprehensive income, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, 

the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in equity are removed from equity and recognized in 

profit or loss. Any impairment loss on available-for-sale investments is immediately recognized in profit or loss. 

Impairment loss recognized on available-for-sale investments will not reverse through income statement in 

subsequent periods.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

k. Financial assets, financial liability and equity (cont’d)

(iv) Available-for-sale investments (cont’d)

For available-for-sale investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair 

value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment loss at each year 

end date subsequent to initial recognition. Any impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when there is 

objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Such impairment loss will not reverse in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the 

contractual arrangements entered into and the definition of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial 

liabilities are measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method. Equity instruments issued by the 

Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

l. Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group only enters into derivative financial instruments in order to hedge its underlying exposures. Derivative 

financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date derivative contracts are entered into and are 

subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged. The Group 

designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in hedges of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability.

For fair value hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, gains or losses arising on changes in fair values of hedging 

instruments are recognized immediately in profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged 

asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of changes in the 

fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensive 

income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective 

portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss, and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Amounts 

accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognized in profit or 

loss.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument 

and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge 

transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the 

hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash 

flows of the hedged item.

The fair values of interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted 

based on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates.

The fair values of currency swaps are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from 

quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no 

longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

m. Properties

(i) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for long term rental income or capital appreciation or both. These 

include completed properties, those under construction and properties that are being redeveloped for 

continuing use as investment properties.

Investment properties are carried at fair value based on valuation performed by an independent professional 

valuer on a market value basis related to individual properties, and separate values are not attributed to land 

and buildings. Changes in fair values are recognized in income statement in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently 

withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its disposal. Any gain or loss on 

derecognition, calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 

property, is included in income statement in the period in which the asset is derecognized.

(ii) Hotel properties

Hotel properties and their integral fixed plant used in the operation of hotel are included in fixed assets at cost 

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Any gain or loss on disposal of a 

hotel property is recognized in the income statement.

(iii) Properties pending/under development for sale

Properties pending/under development for sale are included in stocks at the lower of cost and net realizable 

value. Net realizable value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realized and the anticipated 

costs to completion.

(iv) Stocks of completed properties

Completed properties remaining unsold at year end are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is determined by apportionment of the total land and development costs attributable to the unsold 

properties.

Net realizable value is determined by reference to sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of 

business less all estimated selling expenses after the year end date, or by management estimates based on 

prevailing market conditions.

(v) Other properties

Other properties are properties held for production or administrative purposes and are included in fixed assets 

at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Any gain or loss on disposal 

of other properties is recognized in the income statement.

n. Depreciation

(i) Hotel properties

Depreciation is provided on hotel property and on its integral fixed plant and calculated on a straight line 

basis to write off their costs less accumulated impairment losses over the shorter of the term of the lease and 

estimated useful lives at rates ranging from 0.68% to 20% per annum.

(ii) Properties under development

No depreciation is provided on properties under development.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

n. Depreciation (cont’d)

(iii) Network equipment

Network equipment including assets and equipment of the digital mobile radio telephone and local multipoint 

distribution services networks are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write off their costs over their estimated 

useful lives at rates ranging from 10% to 50% per annum. No depreciation is provided on network equipment 

under construction.

(iv) Other properties

The cost of leasehold land and construction cost of buildings thereon are depreciated on a straight line basis 

over the shorter of the term of the lease and their estimated useful lives.

(v) Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets including equipment, furniture, fixtures, vessels and vehicles are stated at cost less 

accumulated depreciation calculated on a straight line method to write off the assets over their estimated 

useful lives at rates ranging from 4% to 33.3% per annum.

o. Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently measured 

either at amortized cost, using the effective interest method or at fair value for the portion that is attributable to the 

hedged risk when accounting for fair value hedges set out in note 1(l) applies.

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly attributable 

to the construction or production of assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 

intended use or sale. Capitalization of such borrowing costs begins when construction or production activities 

commence and ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

p. Materials

Materials comprising mainly building materials, hotel stocks, handsets and consumable goods are valued at the lower 

of cost, calculated on a weighted average cost basis, and net realizable value.

q. Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are converted into Hong Kong dollars at the market rates of exchange 

ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into 

Hong Kong dollars at closing rates of exchange ruling at the year end date. Exchange differences arising in these cases 

are dealt with in the income statement.

The assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities expressed in functional 

currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates of exchange ruling at the year end date whereas 

the income statement are translated at average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising on translation 

are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

r. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liabilities are provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences between the 

carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their tax bases used in the computation of 

taxable profits, while deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits 

will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and 

associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary 

difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

s. Provision

Provisions are recognized when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle a present 

obligation and the amount of obligation can be reliably estimated.

t. Segment reporting

Reportable and operating segments are presented in a manner consistent with the Group’s internal financial reporting. 

This is the measure reported to the Group’s management for the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of 

segment performance.

u. Retirement benefits

The retirement benefit costs charged to the income statement represent the contributions payable in respect of the 

current year to the Group’s defined contribution schemes and Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes.

v. Share-based payments

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair value of 

share options granted at the grant date and expensed on a straight line basis over the relevant vesting periods with a 

corresponding increase in capital reserves within equity. At each year end date, the Group revises its estimates of the 

number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is 

recognized in income statement with a corresponding adjustment to capital reserves.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognized in capital reserves will be 

transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited, lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously 

recognized in capital reserves will be transferred to retained profits.
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of investment income, central administration 

costs, other income, net finance costs and change in fair value of investment properties. This is the measure reported to the 

Group’s management for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

(a) Segment revenue and results

An analysis of the revenue and results for the year of the Group and its share of associates and jointly controlled 

entities by reportable and operating segments is as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2011

The Company

and its subsidiaries

Associates and jointly

controlled entities

Revenue Results

Share of

revenue

Share of

results

Combined

revenue

Consolidated

results

Property sales

 Hong Kong 32,245 10,756 5,752 2,882 37,997 13,638

 Mainland China 3,985 888 524 100 4,509 988

 Singapore – – 3,972 2,021 3,972 2,021

36,230 11,644 10,248 5,003 46,478 16,647

Property rental

 Hong Kong 8,824 6,680 1,988 1,599 10,812 8,279

 Mainland China 1,054 725 104 72 1,158 797

 Singapore – – 639 435 639 435

9,878 7,405 2,731 2,106 12,609 9,511

Hotel operation 2,055 362 539 191 2,594 553

Telecommunications 6,631 967 – – 6,631 967

Transportation, 

 infrastructure and

 logistics 3,194 830 2,532 115 5,726 945

Other businesses 4,565 868 214 38 4,779 906

62,553 22,076 16,264 7,453 78,817 29,529

Other income 574 – 574

Unallocated 

 administrative 

 expenses (1,284) – (1,284)

Operating profit

 before change in fair

 value of investment

 properties 21,366 7,453 28,819

Increase in fair value

 of investment

 properties 25,070 4,795 29,865

Operating profit after

 change in fair

 value of investment

 properties 46,436 12,248 58,684

Net finance costs (1,033) (166) (1,199)

Profit before taxation 45,403 12,082 57,485

Taxation

 – Group (7,359) – (7,359)

 – Associates – (28) (28)

 –  Jointly controlled

 entities – (1,310) (1,310)

Profit for the year 38,044 10,744 48,788
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

(a) Segment revenue and results (cont’d)

For the year ended 30 June 2010 (Restated)

The Company
and its subsidiaries

Associates and jointly
controlled entities

Revenue Results
Share of
revenue

Share of
results

Combined
revenue

Consolidated
results

Property sales

 Hong Kong 12,481 5,447 911 491 13,392 5,938
 Mainland China 110 38 1,525 640 1,635 678

12,591 5,485 2,436 1,131 15,027 6,616
Property rental

 Hong Kong 8,057 6,061 1,809 1,471 9,866 7,532
 Mainland China 726 498 – – 726 498
 Singapore – – 490 284 490 284

8,783 6,559 2,299 1,755 11,082 8,314
Hotel operation 1,409 238 496 135 1,905 373
Telecommunications 3,957 327 – – 3,957 327
Transportation,
 infrastructure and
 logistics 2,862 693 2,598 132 5,460 825
Other businesses 3,609 782 245 51 3,854 833

33,211 14,084 8,074 3,204 41,285 17,288

Other income 663 – 663
Unallocated 
 administrative
 expenses (905) – (905)

Operating profit before
 change in fair
 value of investment
 properties 13,842 3,204 17,046
Increase in fair value
 of investment
 properties 16,469 3,360 19,829

Operating profit after
 change in fair
 value of investment
 properties 30,311 6,564 36,875
Net finance costs (639) (221) (860)

Profit before taxation 29,672 6,343 36,015
Taxation
 – Group (4,292) – (4,292)
 – Associates – (29) (29)
 –  Jointly controlled

 entities – (1,053) (1,053)

Profit for the year 25,380 5,261 30,641

Other businesses comprise revenue and profit derived from other activities including property management, 

construction, mortgage and other loan financing, internet infrastructure, enabling services and department store.

Other income includes mainly investment income from equity and bonds investments.
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable and operating segments are analysed as follows:

The
Company

and its
subsidiaries

Associates
and jointly
controlled

entities
Total

assets
Total

liabilities

At 30 June 2011

Property development

 Hong Kong 96,446 1,901 98,347 (9,225)
 Mainland China 19,593 4,984 24,577 (3,011)
 Singapore – 950 950 –

116,039 7,835 123,874 (12,236)
Property investment

 Hong Kong 168,616 24,266 192,882 (2,607)
 Mainland China 46,459 3,189 49,648 (1,323)
 Singapore – 3,195 3,195 –

215,075 30,650 245,725 (3,930)

Hotel operation 10,760 1,212 11,972 (304)
Telecommunications 5,557 – 5,557 (3,578)
Transportation, infrastructure and logistics 5,385 2,091 7,476 (999)
Other businesses 3,037 147 3,184 (2,235)

355,853 41,935 397,788 (23,282)

Bank balances and deposits 7,898 –
Other financial assets 4,488 –
Bank and other borrowings – (60,435)
Unallocated corporate assets/(liabilities) 3,023 (1,534)
Taxation – (5,141)
Deferred taxation – (10,610)

Total assets/(liabilities) 413,197 (101,002)

At 30 June 2010 (Restated)

Property development
 Hong Kong 76,911 3,100 80,011 (13,297)
 Mainland China 18,680 2,804 21,484 (5,397)
 Singapore – 388 388 –

95,591 6,292 101,883 (18,694)
Property investment
 Hong Kong 152,725 20,403 173,128 (2,140)
 Mainland China 33,564 1,588 35,152 (1,335)
 Singapore – 3,727 3,727 –

186,289 25,718 212,007 (3,475)

Hotel operation 10,119 1,249 11,368 (144)
Telecommunications 3,367 – 3,367 (1,996)
Transportation, infrastructure and logistics 5,605 2,429 8,034 (971)
Other businesses 2,626 138 2,764 (2,000)

303,597 35,826 339,423 (27,280)

Bank balances and deposits 8,204 –
Other financial assets 4,404 –
Bank and other borrowings – (45,388)
Unallocated corporate assets/(liabilities) 2,915 (1,798)
Taxation – (5,266)
Deferred taxation – (7,189)

Total assets/(liabilities) 354,946 (86,921)
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

(c) Other segment information

The Group’s depreciation and amortization and additions to segment assets by reportable and operating segments are 

analysed as follows:

Depreciation and

amortization charged to

consolidated income 

statement Additions to segment assets

2011 2010 2011 2010

Property development for sale 10 9 22,869 13,567

Property investment for rental – – 6,379 6,110

Hotel operation 257 156 1,246 2,153

Telecommunications 536 560 688 569

Transportation, infrastructure and logistics 360 359 82 22

Other businesses 193 167 222 87

Unallocated corporate assets 27 27 16 8

1,383 1,278 31,502 22,516
 

(d) Geographical information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical area of principal markets is as follows:

2011 2010

Hong Kong 56,959 32,064

Mainland China 5,312 926

Others 282 221

62,553 33,211

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical location is as follows:

(Restated)

2011 2010

The

Company

and its

subsidiaries

Associates

and jointly

controlled

entities Consolidated

The

Company

and its

subsidiaries

Associates

and jointly

controlled

entities Consolidated

Hong Kong 188,138 29,617 217,755 170,884 27,319 198,203

Mainland China 47,496 8,173 55,669 34,177 4,392 38,569

Singapore – 4,145 4,145 – 4,115 4,115

Others 174 – 174 122 – 122

235,808 41,935 277,743 205,183 35,826 241,009

Loan receivables 275 346

Other financial assets 3,362 3,554

Total non-current

 assets 281,380 244,909
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3. NET FINANCE COSTS

2011 2010

Interest expenses on

 Bank loans and overdrafts 811 489

 Other loans wholly repayable within five years 117 53

 Other loans not wholly repayable within five years 302 275

1,230 817

Notional non-cash interest accretion 97 86

Less: Amount capitalized (232) (233)

1,095 670

Interest income on bank deposits (62) (31)

1,033 639

Finance costs have been capitalized for properties under development at rates ranging from 1.31% to 7.04% per annum (2010: 

0.67% to 7.56%).

Notional non-cash interest accretion represents notional adjustments to accrete the carrying amount of asset retirement 

obligations and contractual obligations of telecommunications licence recognized in the statement of financial position to the 

present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be required for their settlement in the future.

4. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2011 2010

Profit before taxation is arrived at

after charging:

 Cost of properties sold 23,147 6,616

 Cost of other inventories sold 1,905 495

 Depreciation and amortization of hotel properties 198 138

 Depreciation of other properties, plant and equipment 850 814

 Amortization of intangible assets (included in cost of sales) 335 326

 Operating lease rentals for land and buildings, transmission sites and leased lines 969 934

 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments and retirement schemes contributions) 4,471 3,774

 Share-based payments 77 –

 Auditors’ remuneration 15 14

 Loss on disposal of fixed assets 23 10

and crediting:

 Dividend income from:

  listed investments 93 94

  unlisted investments 6 4

 Interest income from:

  listed debt securities 86 102

  unlisted debt securities 7 6

 Profit on disposal of available-for-sale investments 88 88

 Profit on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 13 59

 Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 98 25
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5. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

Name of director Fees

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Discretionary

bonuses

Retirement

scheme

contributions

(Note b)

Share-based

payments

2011

Total

emoluments

2010

Total

emoluments

Executive Directors

Kwok Ping-kwong, Thomas 0.14 1.78 0.20 0.17 1.58 3.87 2.15

Kwok Ping-luen, Raymond 0.30 1.84 0.21 0.17 1.58 4.10 2.31

Chan Kai-ming 0.10 2.91 0.33 0.27 1.58 5.19 3.37

Chan Kui-yuen, Thomas 0.13 4.23 6.46 0.39 1.58 12.79 10.57

Kwong Chun 0.10 2.29 1.92 – 1.58 5.89 4.40

Wong Chik-wing, Mike 0.10 9.72 5.84 0.69 1.58 17.93 15.23

Chan Kwok-wai, Patrick 0.10 5.53 8.91 0.26 – 14.80 8.92

Non-Executive Directors

Kwong Siu-hing 0.12 – – – – 0.12 0.12

Kwok Ping-sheung, Walter 0.13 – – – – 0.13 0.13

Lee Shau-kee 0.11 – – – – 0.11 0.11

Woo Po-shing 0.10 – – – – 0.10 0.10

Kwan Cheuk-yin, William 0.15 – – – – 0.15 0.15

Lo Chiu-chun, Clement 0.15 – – – – 0.15 0.15

Wong Yick-kam, Michael

 (Note a) 0.30 – – – – 0.30 16.35

Independent Non-Executive

 Directors

Dicky Peter Yip 0.35 – – – – 0.35 0.35

Wong Yue-chim, Richard 0.22 – – – – 0.22 0.22

Li Ka-cheung, Eric 0.63 – – – – 0.63 0.57

Fung Kwok-lun, William 0.10 – – – – 0.10 0.04

Past Directors

Cheung Kin-tung, Marvin – – – – – – 0.14

Total 2011 3.33 28.30 23.87 1.95 9.48 66.93 65.38

Total 2010 3.29 30.80 29.40 1.89 –
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5. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (cont’d)

The above analysis included three (2010: three) individuals whose emoluments were among the five highest pay in the Group. 

Details of the emoluments paid to the remaining two (2010: two) individuals are:

2011 2010

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 13.17 13.84

Discretionary bonuses 15.69 5.94

Retirement scheme contributions 1.99 1.02

Share-based payments (Note b) 1.05 –

31.90 20.80

Number of employees whose emoluments fell within:

Emoluments Band Number of

employees

Number of

employeesHK$M HK$M

10.0 – 10.5 – 1

10.5 – 11.0 – 1

13.5 – 14.0 1 –

18.0 – 18.5 1 –

2 2

Notes:

(a) Mr. Wong Yick-kam, Michael ceased to be Executive Director and re-designated as Non-Executive Director on 1 January 2010.

(b) Share-based payments are the fair values of share options granted to employees (including directors), which are determined at the 

date of grant and expensed over the vesting period.

6. STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a number of defined contribution schemes for all qualified employees. The assets of these schemes are 

held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds. Contributions to these schemes are made by 

both the employers and employees at rates ranging from 5% to 10% on the employees’ salary.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group sets up an employer sponsored scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for other employees. 

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund 

Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered 

funds. Pursuant to the rules of the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees are each required to make contributions to the 

scheme at specific rates. Contributions of the Group to the MPF Scheme are charged to income statement as incurred.

Total contributions to the retirement schemes made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$216 million (2010: HK$190 

million). Forfeited contributions for the year of HK$1 million (2010: HK$2 million) were used to reduce the existing level of 

contributions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

7. TAXATION

(Restated)

2011 2010

Company and subsidiaries

Current taxation

 Hong Kong profits tax 2,608 1,986

 Under provision in prior years 1,115 6

3,723 1,992

Tax outside Hong Kong 503 668

4,226 2,660

Deferred taxation charge/(credit)

 Change in fair value of investment properties 2,682 2,082

 Tax released on disposal of investment properties – (674)

 Other origination and reversal of temporary differences 451 224

3,133 1,632

7,359 4,292

(a) Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) based on the estimated assessable profits for the 

year. Tax outside Hong Kong is calculated at the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdictions.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

(Restated)

2011 2010

Profit before share of results of associates, jointly controlled entities and taxation 45,403 29,672

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) 7,492 4,896

Effect of change in tax rate and different tax rates of 

 subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong 2,057 991

Net effect of non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income (3,285) (1,539)

Utilization/recognition of tax losses not previously recognized (50) (37)

Tax losses and other temporary differences not recognized 45 (3)

Under provision in prior years 1,115 6

Others (15) (22)

Tax expenses 7,359 4,292

(c) During the year, a settlement agreement was reached with Inland Revenue Department in respect of the tax 

assessments for certain subsidiaries of the Group for certain prior years and a total sum HK$1,115 million was 

recognized in the current tax charge by the Group for this settlement.
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8. DIVIDENDS

2011 2010

Dividends recognized as distribution during the year:

2011 interim dividend of HK$0.95 per share based on 2,570 million shares

 (2010: HK$0.85 per share based on 2,564 million shares) 2,442 2,180

2010 final dividend of HK$1.85 per share based on 2,570 million shares

 (2010: 2009 final dividend of HK$1.70 per share based on 2,564 million shares) 4,755 4,359

7,197 6,539

Proposed final dividend of HK$2.40 per share based on 2,570 million shares

 (2010: HK$1.85 per share based on 2,570 million shares) 6,168 4,755

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Reported earnings per share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the Group’s profit attributable to the Company’s 

shareholders of HK$48,097 million (2010 (restated): HK$30,039 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year of 

2,570,039,181 (2010: 2,565,240,040). The diluted earnings per share is based on 2,570,556,026 (2010: 2,565,240,040) 

shares which is the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of 

516,845 (2010: Nil) shares deemed to be issued at no consideration if all outstanding options had been exercised.

(b) Underlying earnings per share

For the purpose of assessing the underlying performance of the Group, basic and diluted earnings per share are 

additionally calculated based on the underlying profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders of HK$21,479 

million (2010: HK$13,883 million), excluding the net effect of changes in the valuation of investment properties. A 

reconciliation of profit is as follows:

(Restated)

2011 2010

Profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders as shown

 in the consolidated income statement 48,097 30,039

Increase in fair value of investment properties (25,070) (16,469)

Effect of corresponding deferred tax charges 2,682 2,082

Realized fair value gains of investment properties disposed net of deferred tax 378 849

Share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities

 – fair value gains of investment properties (4,795) (3,360)

 – effect of corresponding deferred tax charges 99 475

(26,706) (16,423)

Non-controlling interests 88 267

Net effect of changes in the valuation of investment properties (26,618) (16,156)

Underlying profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders 21,479 13,883
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group

(a) Movement during the year

Completed

Under 

development Total

Valuation

At 1 July 2009 135,297 23,296 158,593

Additions 548 5,562 6,110

Transfer upon completion 12,848 (12,848) –

Transfer from

 – properties under development – 6,708 6,708

 – properties for sale – 126 126

 – deposits for acquisition of properties 14 – 14

Disposals (2,897) – (2,897)

Transfer to

 – properties for sale (52) (1,347) (1,399)

 – other properties (31) – (31)

 – other fixed assets – (1) (1)

Exchange difference 127 182 309

Increase in fair value 10,436 6,033 16,469

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 156,290 27,711 184,001

Additions 523 6,759 7,282

Transfer upon completion 12,193 (12,193) –

Transfer from

 – properties under development 130 – 130

 – properties for sale – 201 201

 – deposits for acquisition of properties – 26 26

Disposals (510) – (510)

Transfer to

 – properties for sale – (4,975) (4,975)

 – other properties (6) – (6)

Exchange difference 779 865 1,644

Increase in fair value 19,304 5,766 25,070

At 30 June 2011 188,703 24,160 212,863
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont’d)

(b) Value of properties shown above comprises:

2011 2010

Properties in Hong Kong held under   

 Long lease (not less than 50 years) 27,007 24,017

 Medium-term lease (less than 50 years but not less than 10 years) 140,405 127,625

Properties outside Hong Kong held under

 Long lease (not less than 50 years) 1,309 1,120

 Medium-term lease (less than 50 years but not less than 10 years) 44,142 31,239

212,863 184,001

(c) Investment properties revaluation

 The Group’s investment properties were valued at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010 by Knight Frank Petty Limited, an 

independent professional valuer, on a market value basis, in accordance with Valuation Standards on Properties issued 

by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. For the completed investment properties, valuation is arrived at on the basis 

of capitalization of net income with due allowance for the reversionary income potential and by making reference 

to comparable market sale and purchase transactions for similar properties. For the investment properties under 

development, valuation is arrived at by making reference to comparable market sale and purchase transactions and 

valuing the properties as if they were completed, taking into account construction costs already incurred and future 

construction costs required for completion of the development.

(d) Profit on disposal of the Group’s investment properties during the year amounted to HK$193 million (2010: HK$203 

million).

(e) Gross rental income and direct operating expenses from investment properties during the year amounted to HK$9,384 

million (2010: HK$8,421 million) and HK$2,339 million (2010: HK$2,087 million) respectively.



166 SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

11. FIXED ASSETS

Hotel

properties

Properties

under

development

Other

properties

Network

equipment

Other

fixed

assets Total

The Group

(a) Movement during the year

Cost

At 1 July 2009 5,952 10,086 4,846 3,666 3,054 27,604

Additions 49 2,111 28 464 202 2,854

Transfer upon completion 1,598 (1,598) – – – –

Transfer from

 – investment properties – – 31 – – 31

 –  investment properties under 

 development – – – – 1 1

Disposals (1) – – (192) (68) (261)

Transfer to investment properties – (6,708) – – – (6,708)

Exchange difference – – – – 3 3

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 7,598 3,891 4,905 3,938 3,192 23,524

Additions 222 805 27 585 636 2,275

Transfer upon completion 2,339 (2,691) 260 – 92 –

Transfer from investment properties – – 6 – – 6

Disposals (8) – – (1,044) (141) (1,193)

Transfer to investment properties – (130) – – – (130)

Exchange difference – – – – 13 13

At 30 June 2011 10,151 1,875 5,198 3,479 3,792 24,495

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 July 2009 1,370 – 1,058 1,969 1,595 5,992

Charge for the year 138 – 104 422 288 952

Disposals – – – (180) (65) (245)

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 1,508 – 1,162 2,211 1,818 6,699

Charge for the year 198 – 107 383 360 1,048

Disposals – – – (1,014) (134) (1,148)

At 30 June 2011 1,706 – 1,269 1,580 2,044 6,599

Net book value at

 30 June 2011 8,445 1,875 3,929 1,899 1,748 17,896

Net book value at

 30 June 2010 6,090 3,891 3,743 1,727 1,374 16,825
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11. FIXED ASSETS (cont’d)

(b) Net book value of properties shown above comprises:

2011 2010

Properties in Hong Kong held under

 Long lease (not less than 50 years)

  Hotel properties 946 784

  Other properties 2,296 2,306

3,242 3,090

 Medium-term lease (less than 50 years but not less than 10 years)

  Hotel properties 5,756 3,695

  Properties under development 1,646 3,730

  Other properties 1,633 1,437

9,035 8,862

Properties outside Hong Kong held under

 Medium-term lease (less than 50 years but not less than 10 years)

  Hotel properties 1,743 1,611

  Properties under development 229 161

1,972 1,772

14,249 13,724

12. SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

2011 2010

Unlisted shares, at cost 30,148 30,074

Particulars regarding principal subsidiaries are set out in the section headed “Principal Subsidiaries” of the Annual Report 2011.
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13. ASSOCIATES

The Group

(Restated) (Restated)

30 June 30 June 1 July

2011 2010 2009

Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment loss 36 36 31

Hong Kong listed shares, at cost 585 585 585

Share of post-acquisition reserves 2,208 2,235 2,186

2,829 2,856 2,802

Amounts due from associates 420 255 255

3,249 3,111 3,057

Market value of Hong Kong listed shares 2,984 2,945 2,703

Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment and are repayable as may 

from time to time be agreed among the shareholders except for the amounts of HK$165 million (2010: Nil) which are interest 

bearing at market rates.

The Group’s effective interest in the revenues, results, assets and liabilities of its associates are summarised below:

(Restated) (Restated)

30 June 30 June 1 July

2011 2010 2009

Non-current assets 3,887 3,757 3,730

Current assets 1,362 1,353 1,512

Current liabilities (955) (675) (794)

Non-current liabilities (1,465) (1,579) (1,646)

Net assets 2,829 2,856 2,802

Revenue 2,369 2,454

Fair value change of investment properties net of related deferred tax 39 26

Profit for the year 171 232

Particulars regarding principal associates are set out in the section headed “Principal Associates” of the Annual Report 2011.
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14. JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The Group

(Restated) (Restated)

30 June 30 June 1 July

2011 2010 2009

Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment loss 2,225 311 725

Share of post-acquisition reserves 28,714 22,305 18,662

30,939 22,616 19,387

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 7,747 10,099 9,331

38,686 32,715 28,718

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment and are 

repayable as may from time to time be agreed among the shareholders except for the amounts of HK$556 million (2010: 

HK$3,188 million) which are interest bearing at market rates.

The Group’s effective interest in the revenues, results, assets and liabilities of its jointly controlled entities are summarised 

below:

(Restated) (Restated)

30 June 30 June 1 July

2011 2010 2009

Non-current assets 55,364 48,622 45,818

Current assets 12,851 13,131 15,578

Current liabilities (18,621) (8,250) (5,848)

Non-current liabilities (18,655) (30,887) (36,161)

Net assets 30,939 22,616 19,387

Revenue 13,895 5,620

Fair value change of investment properties net of related deferred tax 4,657 2,859

Profit for the year 10,573 5,029

Particulars regarding principal jointly controlled entities are set out in the section headed “Principal Jointly Controlled Entities” 

of the Annual Report 2011.
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15. LOAN RECEIVABLES

The Group

2011 2010

Loan receivables 290 371

Less: Amount due within one year included under current assets (15) (25)

275 346

Loan receivables include mortgage loan receivables which are secured on properties and repayable by monthly instalments 

with various tenors not more than 20 years at the year end date and carry interest at rates with reference to banks’ lending 

rates.

As at 30 June 2011, 3% (2010: 5%) of loan receivables have been overdue but not impaired, of which 100% (2010: 98%) 

are aged less than three months since the due dates. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom the 

creditworthiness, collateral and subsequent settlement after reporting date are assessed and there has not been a significant 

change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

Impairment losses in respect of loan receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that 

recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against loan receivables directly. The 

balance and movement of the impairment allowance as at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010 is not significant.

16. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group

2011 2010

Held-to-maturity debt securities

 Listed debt securities, overseas 81 348

 Unlisted debt securities – 80

81 428

Available-for-sale debt securities

 Listed debt securities, overseas 640 891

 Listed debt securities, Hong Kong 21 52

 Unlisted debt securities 59 41

720 984

Available-for-sale equity securities

 Listed equity securities, overseas 633 554

 Listed equity securities, Hong Kong 1,447 1,180

 Unlisted equity securities 481 408

2,561 2,142

3,362 3,554

Market value of listed securities

 Listed overseas 1,354 1,798

 Listed in Hong Kong 1,468 1,232

2,822 3,030
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

Concession Telecommunications

assets Goodwill licences Total

Cost

At 1 July 2009 6,930 35 789 7,754

Additions – – 36 36

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 6,930 35 825 7,790

Additions – – 1,027 1,027

At 30 June 2011 6,930 35 1,852 8,817

Accumulated amortization

At 1 July 2009 2,823 – 284 3,107

Amortization 259 – 67 326

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 3,082 – 351 3,433

Amortization 258 – 77 335

At 30 June 2011 3,340 – 428 3,768

Net book value at 30 June 2011 3,590 35 1,424 5,049

Net book value at 30 June 2010 3,848 35 474 4,357

Concession assets represent cost of tunnel, approach road and buildings, electrical and mechanical systems under the 

service concession arrangement with the HKSAR Government to participate in the development, financing, operation and 

maintenance of toll road infrastructure, which have finite useful lives of 27 years, and are amortized on a straight line basis.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the net fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, 

liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries. At the year end date, an impairment test was performed by 

comparing the carrying amount of the business with the recoverable amount.

Telecommunications licences represent the discounted value of the annual fees payable for the telecommunications licences 

over the licence period, which have finite useful lives ranging from 12 to 15 years, and are amortized on a straight line basis. 

The corresponding non-current and current portion of these contractual liabilities are recorded in other long-term liabilities 

and other payables respectively.

18. PROPERTIES FOR SALE

The Group

2011 2010

Properties pending development for sale 46,826 28,890

Properties under development for sale 41,796 42,489

Stock of completed properties for sale 10,239 13,544

98,861 84,923
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19. DEBTORS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHERS

2011 2010

Notes The Group The Company The Group The Company

Debtors, deposits and prepayments 18,238 7 10,508 7

Deposits for acquisition of properties 5,012 – 4,882 –

Amounts due from customers 

 for contract works 19a 67 – 60 –

Short-term loans 53 – 63 –

Derivative financial instruments 19b 562 – 547 –

23,932 7 16,060 7

Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase 

agreements.  Monthly rents in respect of leased properties are payable in advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle 

their accounts according to the payment terms as stated in the respective contracts.

Included in debtors, prepayments and others of the Group are trade debtors of HK$13,713 million (2010: HK$5,228 million), 

of which 97% (2010: 92%) are aged less than 60 days, 1% (2010: 2%)  between 61 to 90 days and 2% (2010: 6%) more than 90 

days.

As at 30 June 2011, 8% (2010: 14%) of trade debtors are past due but not impaired, of which 89% (2010: 85%) are aged less 

than three month since the due dates. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history 

of default and there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that 

recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly. The balance 

and movement of the impairment allowance as at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010 is not significant.

19a. Amounts due from/(to) customers for contract works

The Group

Notes 2011 2010

Contract costs incurred plus recognized profits less recognized losses 242 1,499

Less: Progress billings (196) (1,495)

46 4

Represented by:

Due from customers included in current assets 19 67 60

Due to customers included in current liabilities 24 (21) (56)

46 4
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19. DEBTORS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHERS (cont’d)

19b. Derivative financial instruments

2011 2010

Notes Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Fair value hedges 19 & 24

 – interest rate swaps 560 – 544 –

 – currency swaps 2 2 3 4

562 2 547 4

Cash flow hedges

 – interest rate swap – 1 – 2

At the year end date, the Group had outstanding fair value hedges in respect of fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps 

to hedge the fair value interest rate risk of the Group’s fixed interest rate borrowings and currency swaps (to hedge 

principal repayment of USD debt) analysed as follows:

Notional principal amount 

2011 2010

Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps maturing

 Within one year 371 –

 After one year, but within five years 2,350 921

 After five years 1,923 3,123

4,644 4,044

Currency swaps maturing

 Within one year 312 –

 After one year, but within five years 140 452

452 452

The fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps converted the fixed rates to floating rates at HIBOR plus a weighted average 

margin of 0.47% (2010: 0.42%) per annum. The swaps are measured at fair value at the year end date and the increase 

in fair value during the year in the amount of HK$17 million (2010: HK$152 million) along with the corresponding 

increase in fair value of the hedged borrowings attributable to the hedged risk of the same amount has been 

recognized in income statement.

At the year end date, the Group had outstanding cash flow hedge in respect of floating-to-fixed interest rate swap to 

hedge the exposure to variability in cash flows of the Group’s floating interest rate borrowing analyzed as follows:

Notional principal amount

2011 2010

Floating-to-fixed interest rate swap maturing

 After one year, but within five years 100 100

The floating-to-fixed interest rate swap converted the floating rate to fixed rate at 2.66% (2010: 2.66%). The swap is 

measured at fair value and the increase in fair value during the year are recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve in 

equity and will be released to the income statement when the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.
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20. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY

The Company

Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

21. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group

2011 2010

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 Listed equity securities, Hong Kong 612 514

 Listed equity securities, overseas 32 22

644 536

Available-for-sale debt securities maturing within one year

 Listed debt securities, overseas 141 –

Held-to-maturity debt securities maturing within one year

 Listed debt securities, overseas (Market value: HK$265 million (2010: HK$319 million)) 262 314

 Unlisted debt securities, overseas (Market value: HK$81 million (2010: Nil)) 79 –

341 314

1,126 850

22. BANK BALANCES AND DEPOSITS

The Group

2011 2010

The Group The Company The Group The Company

Bank deposits 5,164 8 6,418 –

Bank balances and cash 2,734 – 1,786 –

7,898 8 8,204 –

Deposits with banks are interest bearing at prevailing market rates. About 59% (2010: 69%) of the Group’s bank balances and 

deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, 23% (2010: 17%) in United States dollars, 16% (2010: 12%) in Renminbi and 2% 

(2010: 2%) in other currencies.

23. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

2011 2010

Note The Group The Company The Group The Company

Unsecured bank overdrafts 76 – 92 3

Long-term bank and other borrowings 

 due within one year 25 9,606 – 11,170 –

9,682 – 11,262 3
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2011 2010

Notes The Group The Company The Group The Company

Creditors and accrued expenses 17,686 20 16,089 20

Amounts due to customers for contract works 19a 21 – 56 –

Amounts due to non-controlling interests 2,742 – 1,516 –

Derivative financial instruments 19b 3 – 6 –

20,452 20 17,667 20

Included in trade and other payables of the Group are trade creditors of HK$2,179 million (2010: HK$1,489 million), of which 

68% (2010: 59%) are aged less than 60 days, 2% (2010: 2%) between 61 to 90 days and 30% (2010: 39%) more than 90 days.

The amounts due to non-controlling interests are interest free, unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

2011 2010

The Group The Company The Group The Company

Unsecured bank overdrafts 76 – 92 3

Long-term bank and other loans 60,359 – 45,296 –

60,435 – 45,388 3

The maturity of the Group’s long-term bank and other loans are as follows:

Note 2011 2010

Secured bank loans repayable

 Within one year 150 195

 After one year, but within two years 3,824 225

 After two years, but within five years 910 2,646

 After five years – 207

4,884 3,273

Unsecured bank loans repayable

 Within one year 7,089 10,975

 After one year, but within two years 16,858 5,424

 After two years, but within five years 14,316 13,480

38,263 29,879

Other unsecured loans repayable

 Within one year 2,367 –

 After one year, but within two years 2,652 2,373

 After two years, but within five years 2,690 3,276

 After five years 9,503 6,495

17,212 12,144

60,359 45,296

Less: Amount due within one year included under current liabilities 23 (9,606) (11,170)

50,753 34,126
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25. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (cont’d)

The fair values of the long-term borrowings as estimated by discounting their future cash flows at the prevailing market 

borrowing rates at the year end date for similar borrowings are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value

2011 2010 2011 2010

Secured bank loans 4,734 3,078 4,734 3,078

Unsecured bank loans 31,174 18,904 31,174 18,904

Other unsecured loans 14,845 12,144 15,489 12,711

50,753 34,126 51,397 34,693

(a) As at 30 June 2011, the Group had entered into fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps in the aggregate notional amount 

of HK$4,644 million (2010: HK$4,044 million) to hedge the fair value interest rate risk of certain fixed interest rate 

borrowings (see note 19b). These borrowings and the related hedging derivatives are reported at fair value through 

income statement.

(b) Secured bank loans related to bank borrowings of the Group’s subsidiaries which are secured by way of legal charges 

over certain of its assets and business undertakings.

(c) The above bank loans and other loans are repayable on various dates up to June 2026 (2010: September 2019) and 

carry interest, after hedging where appropriate, at effective rate per annum of 2.32% (2010: 1.98%) at the year end 

date.

(d) The carrying amount of the borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

2011 2010

The Group The Company The Group The Company

Hong Kong dollars 44,533 – 35,641 3

United States dollars 5,399 – 3,081 –

Renminbi 10,430 – 6,598 –

Other currency 73 – 68 –

60,435 – 45,388 3



177SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

26. DEFERRED TAXATION

The Group

The components of the carrying amount of deferred tax balances and the movements during the year are as follows:

Accelerated 

tax 

depreciation

Revaluation 

of 

properties Tax losses Others Total

At 1 July 2009

 – as originally stated 2,557 16,837 (662) (13) 18,719

 – change in accounting policy – (13,212) – – (13,212)

 – as restated 2,557 3,625 (662) (13) 5,507

Charged to income statement 189 1,408 14 21 1,632

Exchange difference 4 46 – – 50

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 (restated) 2,750 5,079 (648) 8 7,189

Charged to income statement 423 2,682 17 11 3,133

Exchange difference 20 269 (1) – 288

At 30 June 2011 3,193 8,030 (632) 19 10,610

At the year end date, the Group has unrecognized tax losses and deductible temporary differences of HK$3,050 million (2010: 

HK$3,732 million), of which none (2010: HK$1 million) of tax losses will expire (2010: December 2010). Recognition of these 

unrecognized tax losses depends on future taxable profits available and losses agreed with the relevant tax authorities.

27. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The Group

2011 2010

Asset retirement and other obligations 58 78

Contractual obligations for telecommunications licences 781 661

839 739



178 SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

28. SHARE CAPITAL

2011 2010

Number of 

shares in 

million Amount

Number of 

shares in 

million Amount

Authorized:

Ordinary shares of $0.50 each

At beginning and end of year 2,900 1,450 2,900 1,450

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of $0.50 each

At beginning of year 2,570 1,285 2,564 1,282

Issue of shares in lieu of cash dividends – – 6 3

At end of year 2,570 1,285 2,570 1,285

On 4 May 2010, the Company issued and allotted 5,705,819 new fully paid shares of HK$0.50 each in the Company at 

HK$117.74 to the shareholders who elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu of cash for the interim dividends pursuant 

to the scrip dividend schemes announced by the Company on 11 March 2010. The new ordinary shares rank pari passu in all 

respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 5 December 2002 (“the New Scheme”) to replace a former 

scheme previously adopted on 20 November 1997 (“the Old Scheme”), whereby the directors of the Company may grant 

options to eligible employees, including executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in 

the Company. Details of share options granted by the Company and the assessment of fair value of the share options granted 

during the year are set out in the Directors’ Report of the Annual Report 2011.

The Old Scheme

Upon the termination of the Old Scheme, no further options could be offered and no options remained outstanding at 30 

June 2011 and 30 June 2010.

The New Scheme

The New Scheme was adopted by the Company in order to comply with the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the 

Listing Rules. During the year, 4,840,000 share options were granted at HK$1.00 per lot to a number of directors and employees 

of the Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for 4,840,000 ordinary shares in the Company.

(i) Movements in share options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company under the New Scheme during the year 

are as follows:

Number of share options

Date of grant Exercise price Exercisable period At 1 July 2010

Granted 

during 

the year

Exercised 

during 

the year

Lapsed 

during 

the year At 30 June 2011

12 July 2010 HK$111.40 12.7.2011 to 11.7.2015 – 4,840,000 – (136,000) 4,704,000

The was no outstanding or movement in share options during the year ended 30 June 2010.
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30. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

The Company

Share 

premium

Capital 

reserves

Retained 

profits Total

At 1 July 2009 35,782 5,281 65,924 106,987

Premium arising from issue of shares, net of expenses 669 – – 669

Profit for the year – – 6,903 6,903

Final dividend paid for the year ended 30 June 2009 – – (4,359) (4,359)

Interim dividend paid for the year – – (2,180) (2,180)

At 30 June 2010 and 1 July 2010 36,451 5,281 66,288 108,020

Profit for the year – – 18,431 18,431

Final dividend paid for the year ended 30 June 2010 – – (4,755) (4,755)

Interim dividend paid for the year – – (2,442) (2,442)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments – 74 – 74

At 30 June 2011 36,451 5,355 77,522 119,328

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company as at 30 June 2011 amounted to 

HK$77,522 million (2010: HK$66,288 million).

31. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

2011 2010

Operating profit before change in fair value of investment properties 21,366 13,842

Depreciation and amortization 1,383 1,278

Impairment of assets 444 –

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 2 –

Profit on disposal of investment properties (193) (203)

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 23 10

Profit on disposal of available-for-sale investments (88) (88)

Dividend income from investments (99) (98)

Interest income (170) (168)

Share-based payments 77 –

Exchange difference 188 49

Operating profit before changes in working capital 22,933 14,622

Decrease/(increase) in properties for sale 15,986 (2,167)

Additions to properties pending development for sale (22,806) (13,682)

Increase in debtors, prepayments and others (10,305) (681)

(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (108) 66

Increase in trade and other payables 1,483 3,364

(Decrease)/increase in deposits received on sales of properties (7,147) 7,818

Cash generated from operations 36 9,340
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31. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont’d)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and assets

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

2011

Net assets disposed of:

 Deposit for acquisition of properties 228

 Debtors, deposits and prepayments 493

 Bank balances and cash 38

 Trade and other payables (141)

618

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries:

 Consideration received 528

 Deferred consideration 30

 Total consideration received and receivable 558

 Net assets disposed of (618)

 Non-controlling interests 11

 Cumulative exchange difference 47

(2)

2011

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries:

 Consideration received 528

 Bank balances and cash disposed of (38)

490

(c) Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2011 2010

Bank deposits 5,164 6,418

Bank balances and cash 2,734 1,786

Bank overdrafts (76) (92)

7,822 8,112

Less: Pledged bank deposits (411) (340)

7,411 7,772
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32. JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS

The Group

At the year end date, the aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements relating to the 

Group’s interests in jointly controlled assets are as follows :

(Restated)

2011 2010

Investment properties 10,249 8,975

Properties under development for sale – 184

Stocks of completed properties for sale 190 143

10,439 9,302

Trade and other payables 225 197

Taxation 58 59

Deferred taxation 70 67

353 323

Revenue 867 467

Expenses 410 120

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group undertook various transactions with related parties. The following is a summary of significant 

transactions, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, between the Group and related parties, 

which were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s business at similar terms to other customers or suppliers and at 

market prices:

Associates Jointly controlled entities

2011 2010 2011 2010

Interest income (a) – – 101 98

Rental income (b) – 6 1 1

Rental expenses (b) – – 29 29

Other revenue from services rendered (c) 93 93 1,002 710

Purchase of goods and services (c) – – 322 384

Purchase of assets (d) – 490 – –

(a) The outstanding balances with associates and jointly controlled entities at the year end date are disclosed in notes 13 

and 14 respectively.

(b) The Group has, in the normal course of its business, entered into lease agreements to lease premises to and from 

related parties. The leases were entered into on normal commercial terms.

(c) Purchase of goods from and rendering of services to related parties were conducted in the normal course of business 

at prices and on terms comparable to those contracted with other suppliers/customers of the Group.

(d) In January 2010, the Group purchased 50% interest in a development site from a wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport 

International Holdings Limited, for a consideration of HK$490 million.

Emoluments to directors (being the key management personnel compensation) are disclosed in note 5.
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Group

At the year end date, the Group had contingent liabilities and commitments, so far as not provided for in the consolidated 

financial statements, as follows:

2011 2010

(a) Capital commitments in respect of investment properties and other fixed assets

 Contracted but not provided for 2,941 4,323

 Authorized but not contracted for 2,272 2,841

(b) Capital commitments in respect of investments

 Contracted but not provided for – 2

(c) The Group’s share of capital commitments of jointly controlled entities

 Contracted but not provided for 246 705

(d) Guarantees given to banks and financial institutions for the borrowings of an associate and jointly controlled entities 

of HK$1,646 million (2010: HK$3,037 million) and other guarantees of HK$4 million (2010: HK$4 million).

The Company

At the year end date, the Company had contingent liabilities, not included in the Company’s financial statements, in respect of 

guarantees for bank and other borrowings drawn by:

2011 2010

Subsidiaries 55,636 42,826

An associate 363 363

Jointly controlled entities 922 2,445

56,921 45,634

35. OPERATING LEASE

At the year end date, the future aggregate minimum lease income receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating 

leases for land and buildings is analysed as follows:

2011 2010

Not later than one year 8,331 7,445

Later than one year but not later than five years 10,369 9,021

Later than five years 1,627 1,967

20,327 18,433

At the year end date, the future aggregate minimum lease charges payable by the Group under non-cancellable operating 

leases for land and buildings, transmission sites and leased lines is analysed as follows:

2011 2010

Not later than one year 704 637

Later than one year but not later than five years 735 555

Later than five years 583 266

2,022 1,458
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36. CHARGES OF ASSETS

At the year end date, certain bank deposits of the Group’s subsidiary, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, in the 

aggregate amount of HK$411 million (2010: HK$340 million) have been pledged for securing performance bonds related to 

telecommunications licences and some other guarantees issued by the banks.

At the year end date, certain assets of the Group’s subsidiaries with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately 

HK$20,274 million (including bank balances of HK$8 million) (2010: HK$16,441 million (including bank balances of HK$6 

million)) have been charged to secure its bank borrowings.

37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the management of the Company is required to make estimates 

and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 

estimates and assumptions used in preparing the financial statements are continually evaluated based on historical experience 

and other factors that are considered relevant, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under 

the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant effect 

on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(a) Fair value of investment properties

At each year end date, the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation carried out by 

an independent qualified professional valuer. In determining the fair value, the valuer has based on market value basis 

which takes into account, inter-alia, certain estimates, including open market rents, appropriate capitalization rates, 

reversionary income potential, redevelopment potential and comparable market transactions. The management has 

reviewed the valuation and is satisfied that the valuation of the Group’s investment properties is reasonable.

(b) Impairment of assets

Assets including goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 

of an asset is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Estimating the value in use of an asset 

involves estimating the future cash flows expected to arise from its continuing use and from its disposal at the end of 

its useful life and applying the appropriate discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of 

money and the risk specific to the asset.

(c) Income taxes

There are transactions and calculations relating to the Group’s ordinary business activities for which the ultimate tax 

determination is uncertain and judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. Where the final 

tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact 

the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

(d) Recognition of deferred tax assets

The amount of the deferred tax assets included in the financial statement of the Group is recognized only to the extent 

that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences and unused 

tax losses can be utilized. The recognition of deferred tax assets requires the Group to make judgements, based on 

assessment regarding future financial performance, about the amount of future taxable profits and the timing of when 

these will be realized.
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37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS (cont’d)

(e) Assessment of useful economic lives

Fixed assets and intangibles (other than goodwill) are depreciated or amortized over their useful economic lives. 

The assessment of estimated useful lives is a matter of judgement based on the experience of the Group, taking into 

account factors such as technological progress, changes in market demand, expected usage and physical wear and 

tear. Useful lives are periodically reviewed for continued appropriateness. Due to long lives of assets, changes to the 

estimates used can result in variations in their carrying value.

(f) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments such as available-for-sale securities and derivative financial instruments are measured in the 

financial statements at fair values. The management uses its judgement in selecting the appropriate valuation 

technique for financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market. For derivative financial instruments such 

as interest rate swaps and currency swaps, assumptions are made based on inputs supported by observable market 

prices or rates.

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments, amounts due from associates and jointly controlled entities, 

loans receivables, trade debtors, bank balances and deposits, trade creditors, bank and other borrowings and other long-term 

liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk 

and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The risks associated with these financial instruments are managed by the Group’s 

financial management policies and practices described below:

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency exposure does not pose a significant risk for the Group as most of the Group’s assets, operational 

cash flows and borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group aims to minimize its currency risk using 

forward contracts where feasible and cost effective. The Group’s primary foreign currency exposures arise mainly 

from the property development and investment activities in Mainland China and Singapore, whose net assets are 

exposed to foreign currency translation risk. Where appropriate, the Group seeks to finance these investments through 

borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies. Exchange differences arising from the translation of the 

net investment in these Mainland China and Singapore subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities have 

been dealt with as an equity movement.

The Group is also exposed to foreign currency risk in respect of its foreign currency borrowings, mainly denominated 

in United States dollars. Where appropriate, the Group may enter into currency swaps to hedge the currency risks 

associated with its borrowings. Foreign currency exposure of the Group’s other monetary assets/liabilities is minimal.

At 30 June 2011, it is estimated that a 10% increase/decrease in exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars against all other 

currencies, with all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the profit before taxation for the year by 

approximately HK$180 million (2010: HK$48 million). The equity would be decreased/increased by HK$86 million (2010: 

HK$173 million).
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing liabilities and assets. 

These exposures are managed partly by using natural hedges that arise from offsetting interest rate sensitive assets 

and liabilities, and partly, at times of interest rate uncertainty, through the use of interest rate swaps.

The Group’s interest rate risks arise principally from borrowings. Borrowings raised at floating rates expose the Group 

to cash flow interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is managed by the Group’s senior management through regular review 

to determine the strategy as to having the funding in floating/fixed rate mix appropriate to the Group’s businesses and 

investments.

The Group’s borrowings are principally arranged on a floating rate basis. When appropriate, interest rate swaps 

are used to hedge and manage its long-term interest rate exposure. Speculative derivative transactions are strictly 

prohibited.

As at 30 June 2011, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other 

variables held constant, would decrease/increase the profit before taxation for the year by approximately HK$391 

million (2010: HK$297 million). The equity would be decreased/increased by approximately HK$38 million and HK$50 

million, respectively (2010: HK$46 million and HK$55 million, respectively).

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the year 

end date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative financial 

instruments in existence at that date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for financial year 2010.

(c) Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through the Group’s certain available-for-sale investments and other financial assets 

that are measured at fair value at each year end date with reference to the quoted market prices. The Group manages 

its exposure by closely monitoring the price movements and the changes in market conditions that may affect the 

value of these investments.

As at 30 June 2011, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 10% in equity prices, with all other variables held 

constant, would increase/decrease the profit before taxation for the year and total equity by approximately HK$62 

million and HK$294 million, respectively (2010: HK$50 million and HK$271 million, respectively).

(d) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade debtors, derivative financial instruments and deposits with 

banks and financial institutions and held-to-maturity debt securities.

The Group’s trade debtors mainly arise from sale of properties developed by the Group and rent receivables from 

tenants. Occasionally, long term loans are provided to purchasers of the Group’s properties and carry interest at rates 

with reference to banks’ lending rates. Regular review is carried out and stringent monitoring procedures are in place 

to deal with overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at 

each year end date to ensure that adequate impairment loss is made for irrecoverable amounts.

Counterparty exposure from derivatives is managed, together with that from deposits and bank account balances, 

with credit limit that reflect published credit ratings and monitored on a regular basis to ensure there is no significant 

risk to any individual counterparty. Investments in held-to-maturity debt securities are generally limited to issuers of 

sound credit and rating.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account 

of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the financial statement after 

deducting any impairment loss. Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set out in note 34, the 

Group does not provide any other guarantee which would expose the Group to material credit risk.



186 SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

(e) Liquidity risk

The Group’s financial and treasury activities are centrally managed and controlled at the corporate level. The Group 

takes liquidity risk into consideration when deciding its sources of finances and their respective tenors. The Group 

aims to diversify its funding sources and minimize its refinancing risk by preventing substantial refinancing in any one 

period. The Group also maintains substantial undrawn committed revolving banking facilities to allow for flexibility in 

meeting its funding requirements.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its derivative and non-derivative financial 

liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the 

earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Total

contractual

Carrying undiscounted Up to > 1 year > 2 years

As at 30 June 2011 Notes amount cash flow 1 year to 2 years to 5 years > 5 years

Creditors and accrued expenses 24 17,686 17,689 13,385 1,145 2,981 178

Amounts due to non-controlling interests 24 2,742 2,742 2,204 – 538 –

Bank and other borrowings 23 & 25 60,435 66,276 11,120 24,509 19,779 10,868

Other long-term liabilities 27 839 1,254 – 173 580 501

Derivative financial instruments 19b 3 4 4 – – –

81,705 87,965 26,713 25,827 23,878 11,547

Total

contractual

Carrying undiscounted Up to > 1 year > 2 years

As at 30 June 2010 Notes amount cash flow 1 year to 2 years to 5 years > 5 years

Creditors and accrued expenses 24 16,089 16,091 13,430 1,068 1,458 135

Amounts due to non-controlling interests 24 1,516 1,516 978 – 538 –

Bank and other borrowings 23 & 25 45,388 48,626 12,219 8,784 20,842 6,781

Other long-term liabilities 27 739 1,094 – 116 463 515

Derivative financial instruments 19b 6 6 4 2 – –

63,738 67,333 26,631 9,970 23,301 7,431

(f) Fair values

Listed investments are stated at quoted market prices. Unlisted equity investments for which fair values cannot be 

reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment losses.

The fair values of trade receivables, bank balances, trade payables, accruals and short-term borrowings approximate to 

their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value 

of currency swap contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the year end date.

The carrying amounts of mortgage loan receivables, which carry variable interest rates and reprice with reference to 

market changes, approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities in the financial statements are not materially different 

from their fair values.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

(f) Fair values (cont’d)

The following tables present the carrying value of financial instruments that are measured at fair value at end of 

reporting date, categorised across the levels of fair value hierarchy defined as follows:

Level 1 Fair values measured at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets.

Level 2 Fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices where those inputs are based on observable 

market data.

As at 30 June 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Financial assets

Available-for-sale debt securities

 Listed debt securities, overseas 781 – 781

 Listed debt securities, Hong Kong 21 – 21

 Unlisted debt securities 59 – 59

Available-for-sale equity securities

 Listed equity securities, overseas 633 – 633

 Listed equity securities, Hong Kong 1,447 – 1,447

 Unlisted equity securities – 328 328

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 Listed equity securities, Hong Kong 612 – 612

 Listed equity securities, overseas 32 – 32

Derivative financial instruments

 Interest rate swaps – 560 560

 Currency swaps – 2 2

3,585 890 4,475

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

 Interest rate swap – 1 1

 Currency swaps – 2 2

– 3 3
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

(f) Fair values (cont’d)

As at 30 June 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Financial assets

Available-for-sale debt securities

 Listed debt securities, overseas 891 – 891

 Listed debt securities, Hong Kong 52 – 52

 Unlisted debt securities 41 – 41

Available-for-sale equity securities

 Listed equity securities, overseas 554 – 554

 Listed equity securities, Hong Kong 1,180 – 1,180

 Unlisted equity securities – 166 166

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

 Listed equity securities, Hong Kong 514 – 514

 Listed equity securities, overseas 22 – 22

Derivative financial instruments

 Interest rate swaps – 544 544

 Currency swaps – 3 3

3,254 713 3,967

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

 Interest rate swap – 2 2

 Currency swaps – 4 4

– 6 6

39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business and 

to continue to provide returns for shareholders while maintaining a prudent level of financial leverage.

The Group actively reviews and monitors its capital structure on a regular basis to maintain a healthy net debt-to-shareholders’ 

funds ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as total borrowings less bank balances and deposits. Shareholders’ 

funds comprise share capital, share premium and reserves attributable to the Company’s shareholders as shown in the 

consolidated statement of financial position. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 

payment of dividends, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

The net debt-to-shareholders’ funds ratios at the year end were as follows:

2011

(Restated)

2010

Secured bank loans 4,884 3,273

Unsecured bank and other loans 55,551 42,115

Total borrowings 60,435 45,388

Less: Bank balance and deposits (7,898) (8,204)

Net debt 52,537 37,184

Shareholders’ funds 306,965 263,221

Net debt-to-shareholders’ funds ratio 17.1% 14.1%

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.

41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements set out on pages 138 to 198 were approved by the board of directors on 15 September 2011.
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Principal Subsidiaries

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the 

following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011 which principally affect the results or assets of the Group.

Unless otherwise stated, the following principal subsidiaries were incorporated and are operating in Hong Kong, unlisted and are 

indirectly held by the Company.

Name Note

Total

Attributable

Equity Interest

Held by the

Company (%) Activities

Nominal Value of

Issued Ordinary

Share Capital/

Registered Capital*

(HK$)

SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. (Listed in Hong Kong) 2 73.82 Provision of data centre, facilities 

management, web applications 

and value added services and 

installation and maintenance 

services

232,920,753

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited 

(Listed in Hong Kong)

3 67.05 Mobile telephone system operation 102,839,386

Sun Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited 6 100 General management & agency 1,000,000

New Town (N.T.) Properties Limited 7 100 Investment holding 2,287,658,338

Hung Kai Finance Company, Limited 9 100 Registered deposit-taking company 100,000,200

Fidelity Finance Company, Limited 6 100 Finance 200

Honour Finance Company, Limited 6 100 Finance 500,000

Sun Hung Kai Properties (Financial Services) Limited 6 100 Finance 100,000

Sun Hung Kai Properties Insurance Limited 6 100 General insurance 75,000,000

Sun Hung Kai Architects and Engineers Limited 6 100 Architectural & engineering 350,000

Sanfield Building Contractors Limited 100 Building construction 12,600,000

Everlight Engineering Company, Limited 100 Fire prevention & mechanical 

engineering

50,000

Aegis Engineering Company, Limited 100 Plant and machine hire 100,000

Hong Yip Service Company Limited 100 Property & facility management 100,000

Kai Shing Management Services Limited 6 100 Property & facility management 10,000

Mantegna Investment Company Limited 1 100 Property investment 2

100 (Note 10) 9,999,998

New Town Serviced Apartment Management 

Company Limited

100 Furnished apartment management 200

Royaltelle International Limited 100 Hotel management 2

Able Smart Assets Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Ace Peace Limited 100 Property investment 1

Additech Ltd. 1 100 Property investment US$1

Advance Vision Enterprises Limited 100 Property investment 2

Airport Freight Forwarding Centre Company Limited 100 Freight forwarding centre 100

Annadale Development Limited 100 Property development and investment 2

Antanpark Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Antinio Investments Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Artsland Properties Investment Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Assured Outcome Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1
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Name Note

Total

Attributable

Equity Interest

Held by the

Company (%) Activities

Nominal Value of

Issued Ordinary

Share Capital/

Registered Capital*

(HK$)

Barnard Enterprises Limited 1 75 Property investment US$100

Beauty Marble Investment Limited 100 Property investment 2

Beijing Sun Dong An Co., Ltd. 5a 100 Property investment US$129,000,000*

Best Winners Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Biliboss Ltd. 1 100 Property investment US$1

Billion Great Investment Limited 100 Property development 2

Branhall Investments Limited 1 100 Property investment 2

100 (Note 10) 39,999,998

Buratto Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Century Loyal Limited 100 Property development 1

Cheerlord Investment Ltd. 1 100 Property investment US$1

成都忠捷置業有限公司 5b 91 Property development RMB213,000,000*

City Lion Investment Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

City Success Limited 100 Property development and investment 2

Cranejoy Limited 100 Property development 350,000,000

Dartfield Development Limited 100 Property development 2

Dictado Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Dipende Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Ease Gold Development Limited 100 Property development 2

Easywise Limited 64.3 Property development 1

Entero Company Limited 8 100 Property investment 200

Even Decade Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Ever Channel Limited 100 Property investment 2

Ever Crystal Limited 100 Property investment 1

Ever Fast Limited 100 Property development and investment 2

Evermax Development Limited 100 Property development and investment 2

Excel Elite Assets Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Excellent Chance Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

First Gain Assets Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Firstmax Limited 100 Property investment 2

Fit Sharp Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Forever Glory Investments Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Fortin International Limited 1 100 Property development and investment US$1

Fortune Honor Limited 100 Property investment 2

Fortune Yield Investment Limited 100 Property investment 2

佛山市新普房地產開發有限公司 5c 100 Property development and investment US$34,000,000*

佛山市新升房地產開發有限公司 5c 80 Property development US$70,000,000*

佛山市新鋒房地產開發有限公司 5c 80 Property development US$95,000,000*

佛山市新晉房地產開發有限公司 5c 80 Property development US$70,000,000*

佛山市新駿房地產開發有限公司 5c 80 Property development US$77,000,000*

佛山市新昊房地產開發有限公司 5c 80 Property development US$98,000,000*

佛山市新匯房地產開發有限公司 5c 80 Property development US$98,000,000*

佛山市新景房地產開發有限公司 5c 80 Property development US$77,000,000*
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Principal Subsidiaries

Name Note

Total

Attributable

Equity Interest

Held by the

Company (%) Activities

Nominal Value of

Issued Ordinary

Share Capital/

Registered Capital*

(HK$)

東莞創紀房地產開發有限公司 5c 100 Property development US$121,000,000*

Full Market Limited 100 Property investment 2

Gainhouse Estates Limited 1 100 Property development US$1

Garudia Limited 100 Property investment 2

General Winner Limited 100 Property development 1

Golden Square Properties Enterprises Limited 1 100 Property investment 2

100 (Note 10) 999,998

Goodwick Limited 100 Property development and investment 1

Group Allied Limited 100 Property development and investment 1

廣州九龍湖房地產開發有限公司 5c 60 Property development 604,965,400*

廣州宏城廣場房地產開發有限公司 5a 50 Property investment RMB1,010,000,000*

廣州新天房地產發展有限公司 5b 70 Property development RMB300,000,000*

廣州市匯信房地產開發有限公司 5a 95 Property development RMB82,000,000*

廣州市佳俊房地產開發有限公司 5c 100 Property development RMB97,200,000*

Harbour Vantage Limited 100 Property development 2

Headmaster Assets Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Hero Town Limited 1 100 Property investment US$86,500,001

Herowell Limited 100 Property investment 1

Hoi Kong Container Services Company Limited 100 Mid stream operator 40,000,000

Honenberg Limited 100 Property investment 2

Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited 35 Business Aviation Centre 1,000,000

Hung Kai Finance Investment Holding Limited 100 Property investment 200

Jayan Company Limited 100 Property investment and investment 

holding

2

Jetcrown Properties Limited 1 100 Property development US$1

Jugada Company Limited 100 Property investment 2

Kamchatka Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Kamsford Hong Kong Limited 100 Property investment 16,500,000

Kartasun Limited 100 Property investment 2

Kimrose Investments Ltd. 1 100 Property investment US$1

Laboster Company Limited 6 100 Property investment 2

Lansmart Limited 100 Property development 2

Large City Investments Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Lee Bit Kai Investment Company Limited 6 100 Property investment 1,000

Leverson Limited 1, 6 100 Property investment and hotel 

management

US$1

Long Tesak Company Limited 100 Property investment 100,000

Lonsale Company Limited 100 Property investment 2

Lorient Holdings Ltd. 1 100 Property investment US$1

Lunalite Company Limited 100 Property investment 2

Manceton Limited 100 Property investment 2

Mighty Choice Assets Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1
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Name Note

Total

Attributable

Equity Interest

Held by the

Company (%) Activities

Nominal Value of

Issued Ordinary

Share Capital/

Registered Capital*

(HK$)

Mindano Limited 100 Property investment 10,000

Moscova Company Limited 6 100 Property investment 200

Nixon Cleaning Company Limited 100 Cleaning service 100,000

Obvio Yip Company Limited 6 100 Property development and investment 15,000,000,000

Open Step Limited 60 Property investment 10

Pacotilla Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Partner Sino Assets Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Pawling Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Pioneer Dragon Limited 100 Property development 2

Pontamell Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Potential Area Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Profit Richness Ltd. 1 100 Property investment US$1

Protasan Limited 100 Property investment 100

Rinnovare Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Route 3 (CPS) Company Limited 70 Toll road operation 10,000

Shanghai Central Plaza Property Co., Ltd. 5a 80 Property investment US$42,000,000*

Shanghai International Commerce Centre Co., Ltd. 

(Formerly known as Shanghai Maxdo International 

Tower Ltd.)

5c 100 Property investment US$290,500,000*

Shanghai SHK International Commerce Centre 

Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as Shanghai Maxdo 

International Hotel Ltd.)

5c 100 Property investment US$90,000,000*

Shanghai Xin Zhong Hui Property Co., Ltd. 5c 100 Property investment US$35,000,000*

Sun Hung Kai Development (Zhang Yang) Ltd. 5c 100 Property development and investment US$165,000,000*

Sharp Act Investments Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Shubbery Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Shunyue Investments Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Smart Globe Limited 100 Property development 1

Smartland Enterprises Limited 100 Property investment 2

Smithtown Investments Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Solar Kingdom Limited 100 Property investment 2

Speed Wise Limited 6 100 Property investment 2

Speedway Assets Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Standard Top Limited 100 Property investment 2

Standtex Limited 100 Property development 1

Startrack Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Sun Carol Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Sun Hung Kai Development (China) Limited 100 Investment holding 20,000,000

Sun Hung Kai Development (Lujiazui I) Ltd. 5c 100 Property investment US$214,482,000*

Sun Hung Kai Development (Lujiazui II) Ltd. 5c 100 Property investment US$65,345,000*

Sun Hung Kai ICC (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. (Formerly 

known as 華祥房地產(南京)有限公司)

5c 100 Property development and investment RMB721,914,400*
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Principal Subsidiaries

Name Note

Total

Attributable

Equity Interest

Held by the

Company (%) Activities

Nominal Value of

Issued Ordinary

Share Capital/

Registered Capital*

(HK$)

Sun Hung Kai ICC (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (Formerly known 

as Ever Crown Properties (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.)

5b 90 Property development and investment RMB1,800,000,000*

新地投資(廣州)有限公司 5c 100 Investment holding US$90,000,000*

Sun Hung Kai Secretarial Services Limited 6 100 Secretarial services 200

Sun Yuen Long Centre Management 100 Property investment and (Note 11) 25,000

 Company Limited 75  management (Note 12) 25,000

Sunfez Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Suniland Limited 100 Property development 2

Sunrit Enterprises Limited 100 Property investment 4,000,000

Tainam Holdings Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Talcon Limited 1 100 Property development US$1

Ten Choice Development Limited 100 Property investment 2

Tenuta Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Tipro Development Limited 100 Property investment 1,000,000

Tonthai Investment Enterprises Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Town Descant Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Transport Infrastructure Management Limited 100 Road management 70,000,000

Treasure On Development Limited 100 Property development and investment 2

Tsi Mai Company Limited 100 Property investment 200

Uniland Investment Enterprises Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

United Way Investments Limited 4, 6 100 Owner of trade mark US$1

100 (Note 10) US$83,400

Upper Hill Company Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Vast Earn Property Corp. 1 100 Property investment US$2

Wai Hung Development Company Limited 6 100 Investment holding and property 

investment

70,000

Warrior Company Limited 100 Property investment 300

Well Famous Enterprise Limited 100 Property investment 1

Well Logic Properties Investment Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

Wellden Limited 100 Property investment 2

Wetland Park Management Service Limited 100 Property development 2

Wilson Parking (Holdings) Limited 100 Investment holding and carpark 

operation

1,000

Winner Land Enterprises Limited 100 Property investment 2

Wiseland Enterprises Limited 1 100 Property development US$1

Wonder Charm Assets Limited 1 100 Property investment US$1

WTC (Club) Limited 100 Club management 200

YATA Limited 100 Department store operation 30,000,000

Zarabanda Company Limited 100 Property investment 2

Zhongshan SHKP Taoyuan Real Estate Development 

Co. Ltd.

5a 75 Property development 40,000,000*
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Notes: 1. Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and operating in Hong Kong.

2. Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and operating in Hong Kong.

3. Incorporated in Bermuda and operating in Hong Kong.

4. Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

5. Incorporated and operating in the People’s Republic of China:

a. Co-operative joint venture enterprise

b. Equity joint venture enterprise

c. Wholly foreign owned enterprise

6. Directly held by the Company.

7. 11.89% directly and 88.11% indirectly held by the Company.

8. 50% directly and 50% indirectly held by the Company.

9. 99.9998% directly and 0.0002% indirectly held by the Company.

10. Redeemable share.

11. “A” share.

12. “B” share.
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Principal Jointly Controlled Entities

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all jointly controlled entities will be of excessive length and 

therefore the following list contains only the particulars of jointly controlled entities as at 30 June 2011 which principally affect the 

results or assets of the Group.

Unless otherwise stated, the following principal jointly controlled entities were incorporated and are operating in Hong Kong and 

unlisted.

Name Note

Total

Attributable

Equity Interest

Held by the

Company (%) Activities

Class of Share/

Registered capital

+ Altomatic Limited 50 Property investment Ordinary

北京新城廣場房地產有限公司 3 40 Property investment Registered capital

Brilliant Palace Limited 4 40 Investment holding Ordinary
#+ Cheerjoy Development Limited 35 Property development Ordinary

# Dragon Beauty International Limited 50 Property development Ordinary

First Star Development Limited 50 Property development Ordinary
+ Glorious Concrete (H.K.) Limited 50 Manufacturers of ready mixed concrete Ordinary

#+ Green Valley Landfill, Limited 20 Landfill waste disposal facility Ordinary
+ 廣州市富景房地產開發有限公司 3 33.3 Property development Registered capital
+ 杭州潤鴻置業有限公司 5 40 Property investment Registered capital

IFC Development Limited 1 50 Property investment Ordinary

Jade Land Resources Limited 25 Property development and investment Ordinary

Karnold Way Limited 57.52 Finance Ordinary
# Kerry Hung Kai Warehouse (Cheung Sha Wan) 

Limited

50 Godown operation Ordinary

+ Maxfine Development Limited 33.3 Investment holding Ordinary
+ Newfoundworld Investment Holdings Limited 1 20 Investment holding Ordinary

#+ Orchard Turn Holdings Pte. Ltd. 2 50 Investment holding Ordinary
+ Ranny Limited 50 Property investment Ordinary

#+ River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd. 1 50 River trade terminal Ordinary
# Senica International Limited 4 22.5 Investment holding Ordinary

Shanghai Xintian Real Estate Co., Ltd. 3 35 Property development and investment Registered capital



197SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LIMITED Annual Report 2010/11

Name Note

Total

Attributable

Equity Interest

Held by the

Company (%) Activities

Class of Share/

Registered capital

#+ South China Transfer Limited 20 Solid waste management and 

environmental services

Ordinary

Special Concept Development Limited 25 Property development and investment Ordinary
+ Splendid Shing Limited 50 Property investment Ordinary
+ Star Play Development Limited 33.3 Property investment Ordinary

Tartar Investments Limited 4 40 Investment holding Ordinary

Teamfield Property Limited 57.52 Property investment Ordinary
+ Tinyau Company Limited 50 Property investment Ordinary
+ Topcycle Development Limited 50 Property development Ordinary

Wuxi International Investment Limited 1 40 Investment holding Ordinary
# Wolver Hollow Company Limited 50 Property investment Ordinary
+ Xipho Development Company Limited 33.3 Property development Ordinary

+ The financial statements of these companies have been audited by firms other than Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. 
# Companies with year ends not co-terminous with that of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited.

Notes: 1. Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and operating in Hong Kong.

2 Incorporated and operating in the Republic of Singapore.

3 Incorporated and operating in the People’s Republic of China as equity joint venture enterprise.

4 Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

5 Incorporated and operating in the People’s Republic of China as wholly foreign owned enterprise.
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Principal Associates

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all associates will be of excessive length and therefore the 

following list contains only the particulars of associates as at 30 June 2011 which principally affect the results or assets of the Group.

Unless otherwise stated, the following principal associates were incorporated and are operating in Hong Kong and unlisted.

Name Note

Total

Attributable

Equity Interest

Held by the

Company (%) Activities Class of Share

#+ Transport International Holdings Limited 

(Listed in Hong Kong)

1 33.28 Public transportation Ordinary

#+ Ranex Investments Limited 29 Property development and investment Ordinary
#+ The Hong Kong School of Motoring Limited 30 Driving School Ordinary
#+ Onluck Finance Limited 35.44 Finance Ordinary
#+ Treasure Peninsula Limited 29 Finance Ordinary

+ The financial statements of these companies have been audited by firms other than Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
# Companies with year ends not co-terminous with that of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited.

Note: 1. Incorporated in Bermuda and operating in Hong Kong.
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